FORM: Half—yeaﬂylprelimihary final report

Name of issuer

Print Mail Logistics Limited

ACN or ARBN Half  yearly Preliminary Half yearffinancial year ended
(tick) final (tick) {'Current period’)
103 116 856 J 30 June 2010

For announcement to the market _
Extracts from this statement for announcement to the market {see nofe 1}.

Revenue (tem 1.1) up/dewn A$273,786 to A%$7,751,256
37%
Profit (loss) for the period fiem 1.9) ap/down A$126,667 to A$92,206
58%
Profit (loss) for the period atributable to gp/down A$126,667 o A$92,206
members of the parent (item 1.17) 58%
Dividends Current period Previous corresponding
period
Franking rate applicable: NIA N/A
Final dividend (preliminary finat report onty)(tem 10.13-
10.14) .
Amount per security 0.00 0.00
Franked amount per security 0.00 0.00
Interim dividend {Half yearly report anly) (item 10.11 -
10.12)
Amount per securily 0.00 0.00
Franked amount per security 0.00 0.00

Short details of any bonus or cash issue or other item(s) of importance not previously released to the
market: :

Nil

NSX Za-Final 4/08/10 - 16:20 “f-
© Copyright National Stock Exchange of Auslralia Limited {(“NSX")




Consolidated income statement (The figures are not equity accounted)

{see noie 3

(as per paragraphs 87-85 and 86-94 of AASE 101: Presentalion of Financial Statements)

Current period — Previous
$A corresponding
period - $A
1.1 Revenues (tem 7.1) 7,751,256 8,689,528
1.2  Expenses, excluding finance costs (tem 7.2) (7.443,608) (8,232,608)
1.3 Finance costs (260,451) (375,002)
1.4 Share of net profits {losses) of associates (8,345) -
and joint ventures (iem 16.7}
1.6  Profit (loss) before income tax 38,852 81,820
1.6 fncome tax (expense)/benefit (sea note 4) 53,354 . 136,953
1.7  Profit (loss) from continuing operations 92,206 (287,918)
1.8 Profit {loss) from discontinued operations - 506,791
{item 13.3}
1.9 Profit (loss) for the period 92,206 218,873
1.10  Profit (loss) attributable to minority interests - -
1.11  Profit (loss) attributable to members of 92,206 218,873
the parent
1.12 Basic earnings per security(cents) (item 9.1) 0.40 2.20
1.13 Diluted earnings per security (tem 9.1) 0.40 2.20
1.14 Dividends per security (tem9.1) - -
Comparison of half-year profits
{Preliminary final stelement anly)
Current period — Previous
carresponding period
$A -3A
2.1 Consolidated profit (loss) after tax 27,681 (393,187)
attributable to members reported for the 1st
half year {kem 1.11 in the half yearly statement)
22 Consolidated profit {loss) after tax 64,525 612,080

attributable to members for the 2nd half year




Consolidated balance sheet

{See note 5}

(as per paragraphs 68-69 of AASB 101: Financial Statement Fresentation)

Current assets Current period — Previous
$A i:orresponding period
31 Cash and cash equivalents (67,338) 30,170
a2 Trade and other receivables 519,319 543,412
3.3 Inventories 177,396 146,865
34 Other current assets (provide detaits if 120,365 158,638
material)
3.5 Total current assets 749,692 879,085
Neon-current assets
36 Available for sale investments - -
3.7 Other financial assets - -
3.8 Investments in associates 807,655 -
39 Deferred tax assets 414,971 191,812
310 Exploration and evaluation expenditure
capitalised (ses para. 71 of AASB 1022 — new
standard not yet finalised)
3.1 Developmernt properties (mining entitles)
312 Praoperty, plant and equipment (net) 2,964,820 2,450,827
3.13 Investment properties - -
314  Goodwill - -
3.15 QOther intangible assets - -
3.168 Other {provide details if material)
3.17  Total non-current assets 4,187,446 2,642 639
3.18  Total assets 4,937,138 3,521,724
Current liabilities
3.19 Trade and other payables 781,375 1,214,596
3.20 Short term borrowings 60,000 -
3.21 Current tax payable - -
3.22 Short term provisions 225,056 341,880
3.23 Current portion of long term borrowings 1,080,942 1,118,237
324 Other current liabilities (provide details if - -
material)
2,147,373 2,674,713
3.25 Liabilities directly associated with non-current - -
assets classified as held for saie ¢para 38 of
AASB 5)
3.26 Total current liabilities 2,147,373 2,674,713




Non-current liahilities

Current period - $A

Previous
corresponding period

3.27  Long-term borrowings 880,482 2,208,232
3.28  Deferred tax liabilities 27,182 54,859
3.29 Long term provisions 100,164 85,603
3.30 Other (provide details if material) - -
3.31 Total non-current liabilities 1,007,828 2,438,694
3.32  Total liabilities 3,155,201 5,113,407
3.33 Net assets 1,781,937 {1,591,683)
Equity
'3.34  Share capital 7,818,679 4,300,118
3.35 Other reserves 65,715 301,626
3.36 Retained earnings {6,102,457) (6,193,427)
Amounts recognised directly in equity relating
to non-current assets classified as held for
sale
3.37 Parent interest 1,781,937 {1,591,683)
3.38 Minority interest - -
3.39  Total equity 1,781,937 {1,591,683)




Consolidated statement of changes in equity

(as per paragraphs 96-37 of AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements)

Current periad — A$

Previous

corresponding

period — A%

Revenues recognised directly in equity: 92,206 218,873

Expenses recognised directly in equity: - -
4.1 Net income recognised directly in equity 92,206 218,873
4.2 Profit for the period 92,206 218,873
4.3 Total recognised income and expense for

the period

Altributable to:
4.4 Members of the parent 92,208 218,873
4.5 Minority interest - -

Effect of changes in accounting policy (as per

AASB 108: Accounting Pollcies, Changes in Accounting

Estimates and Errors):
4.6 Members of the parent entity 92,206 218,873
4.7 Minority interest - -




Consolidated statement of cash flows
{See note 6)

(as per AASB 107: Cash Flow Statements)

Current period - $A | Previous
corresponding
period - $A
Cash flows related to opsrating activities
5.1 Receipts from customers 8,131,420 7,743,030
5.2 Payments to suppliers and employees {7.745,721) (7,829,378)
5.3 Interest and other costs of finance paid (173,161) (254,534)
5.4 Income taxes paid - -
5.5 Other (provide details if material) 2,370 162
5.6 Net cash used in operating activities 214,908 {340,720)
Cash flows related to investing activities
57 Payments for purchases of property, plant and (1,288,654) (708,076)
equipment
5.8 Proceeds from sale of property, ptant and 1,793 6,300
' equipment
5.9 Payment for purchases of equity investments (816,000} -
5.10 Proceeds from sale of equity investments - 22,506
51 Loans to other entities - -
5,12 Loans repaid by other entities - -
5.13 interest and other items of simllar nature - -
received
5.14 Dividends received - -
5.15 Other (provide detaits if material) - -
5.16 Net cash used in investing activities (2,102,861) (679,270)
Cash flows related to financing activities
517 Proceeds from issues of securities (shares, 3,631,000 843,463
options, etc.)
5.18 Proceeds from borrowings 742,910 2,181,164
5.19 Repayment of borrowings (1,837,330) (2,062,234)
5.20 Dividends paid - -
5.21 Other (transaction costs) (658,271) -
5.22 Net cash used in financing activities 1,878,309 961,693
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash {9,644) (58,297)
equivalents
523 Cash at beginning of period {103,728) (45,431)
{see Reconciliations of cash)
524 Exchange rate adjustments to item 5.23 - -
525  Cash atend of period (113,372} (103,278)

{see Reconciliation of cash)




Reconciliation of cash provided by operating activities to profit or loss

(as per paragraph Aus20.7 of AASB 107: Cash Flow Statements}

Current period - $A | Previous
corresponding
period - $A
8.1 Profit gterm 1.9) 92,206 218,873
Adjustments for non-cash items:
6.2 Depreciation 774,661 557,530
6.3 Dividend - (461,833}
6.4 (Profit) on forgiveness of loan (300,000) {659,762)
8.5 Net (profit)/loss on disposal of property, plant {1,793) (101,300)
and equipment
6.6 Loss on sale of shares - 413,915
6.7 Notional interest — Convertible notes 87,290 120,471
6.8 Share of net loss of associate 8,345 -
6.9 Changes in trade and other receivables 22,855 {67,919)
6.10 Changes in other assels 38,274 (126,384)
8.1 Changes in inventories {30,530) {25,768)
612 Changes in deferred tax (53,355) (136,953)
6.13 Changes in trade creditors (210,636) (453,118)
6.14 Changes in sundry creditors {110,145) 172,003
6.15 Changes in employee entitlements (102,264) 208,522
6.10 Net cash from 6perating activities (item 5.6) 214,908 (340,721)




Notes to the financial statements

Details of revenues and expenses

{see nofe 16)

{Whera items of income and expense are malerial, disclose nature and amount below in accardance with paragraphs B6-87 of

AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Stafements)

Current period - $A Previous
corresponding
period - $A
Revenue from rendering of services 7,362,465 7.423,371
interest received 2,370 162
Dividends receivad - 461,833
Proceeds on sale of plant & equipment 1,793 101,300
Gain on forgiveness of debt 300,000 659,762
Gain on foreign currency franslation 59,164 -
Other Income 25464 43,100
7.1 Total Revenue 7.751,256 8,689,528
Expenses

Changes in inventories of finished goods & WIP (79,095) {25,768)

Raw materials and consumables used
Employee benefits expense (2,817,743) (2,836,666)
Finance costs (2,734,047) (2,776,465)
Depreciation and amortisation expense (260,451) (375,002)
Operating leases (774.661) (557,530)
Occupancy expenses B (29,659)
Office and administration expenses (321,470) (268,395)
Ordinary expenses (575,954) (569,706)
Loss on foreign currency transiation (140.638) (720,793)
Loss on disposal of shares " (13,681)
Share of net profits/(loss) of associates B (413,915)
(8,345) -

7.2 Total Expenses

{7,.712,404) (8,607,608)
Profit (loss) before tax 38,852 81,920




Ratios Current period Previous
corresponding
period

Profit before tax / revenue

8.1 Consolidated profit (loss) before tax (fem 1.5 as 0.50% 0.94%
a percentage of revenue (fem 1.1)
Profit after tax / equity interests

8.2 Consolidated profit (loss) after tax attributable to 517% (13.75)%

merabers (irem .14} as a percentage of equity
{similarly attributable) at the end of the period fitem
337




Earnings per Security

9.1 Provide details of basic and fully difuted EPS in accordance with paragraph 70 and Aus 70. 7 of
AASB 133: Earnings per Share below:
Para 70(a) The numerator is equal to Profit/{Loss) after tax:
Current period: A$92,206
Prior corresponding period: A$218,873
Para 70(b) The denominator is equal to the weighted average number of ordinary shares on
issue:
Current period: 23,157,836
Prior corresponding period: 9,935,408
Para 70(c) At reporting date, the Company has on issue three (3) separate convertible notes
that could, at the option of the Noteholder, be converted into 125,000 ordinary shares each at
the price of $2.00 per share (ie a total of 375,000 ordinary shares at $2.00 each fotalling
A$750,000). The convertible notes are excluded from the calculation of basic and diluted
earnings per share because they are anti-dilutive for the period(s) presented.
Para70(d) There have been no ordinary share transactions or potential ordinary share
transactions that have ocourred after the reporting date that would have changed significaritly
the number of ordinary shares or poiential ordinary shares outstanding at the end of the period
if those transactions had occurred before the end of the reporting period.
Para 70.1(a) Nil.
Dividends
10.1 Date the dividend is payable Nil
10.2 Record date to determine entitiements to the dividend (i.e. on | Nil
the basis of registrable transfers recsived up fo 5.00 pm if
paper based, or by 'End of Day’ if a proper ASTC/CHESS
transfer)
10.3 If it is & final dividend, has it been deciared?
(Preliminary final report only)
10.4 The dividend or distribution plans shown below are in operation.
Nil
The last date(s) for receipt of election notices to the Nil

dividend or distribution plans




10.5

Any other disclosures in relation to dividends or distributions

Nil

Dividends paid or provided for on all securities

{as per paragreph Aus126.4 AASE 101: Presentation of Financial Statements)

Current period - Previous Franking
$A corresponding | rate
period - $A applicable
Dividends paid or provided for Nil Nil Nil
during the reporting period
10.6  Current year interim Nil Nil Nil
10.7  Franked dividends Nit Nil Nil
10.8  Previous year final Nil N Nil
10.9  Franked dividends Nil Nil Nil
Dividends proposed and not Nil Nil Nil
recognised as a liability
10.40 Franked dividends Nit Nit Nil
Dividends per security
{as per paragraph Aus126.4 of AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements)
Current year Previous year | Franking
rate
applicable
Dividends paid or provided for Nil Nil MNil
during the reporting period
10.11  Current year interim Nil il Nil
10.12 Franked dividends — cents per share Nil il Nil
10.13 Previous year final Nil Nil Nil
10.14 Franked dividends — cents per share Nil Nl Nil
Dividends proposed and not Nil Nil Ni
recognised as a liability
10.15 Franked dividends — cents per share Nil Nil Nil




Exploration and evaluation expenditure capitalised
To be complated only be issuers with mining interests if amounts are material, Include all expenditure incurred regardless of
whether written off directly against profit

Current period $A Previous
corresponding
period $A

111 Opening balance Not applicable Not applicable

11.2 Expenditure incurred during current period Not applicable Not applicable

11.3 Expenditure written off during current period Not applicable Not applicable

11.4 Acquisitions, disposals, revaluation Mot applicable Not applicabte
increments, etc.

11.56 Expenditure transferred to Development Mot applicable Not applicable
Properties

11.6 Closing balance as shown In the | Not applicable Not applicable
consolidated balange sheet (item 3.10)

Development properties

{To be completed only by issuers with mining interests f amounts are material}

Current period $A Pravious
correspending
period $A

12.1 Opening balance Not applicable Not applicable

12.2 Expenditure incurred during current period Not applicable Not applicable

12.3 Expenditure transferred from exploration and Not applicable Not applicable
evaluation

12.4 Expenditure written off during current period Not applicable Not applicable

12.5 Acquisitions, disposals, revaluation Not appiicable Not applicable
increments, etc.

12.6 Expenditure transferred to mine properties Not applicable Not applicable

12.7 Closing balance as shown in the | Not applicable Not applicable

consolidated balance sheet (item 3.11)




Discontinued Operations

{see nole 18}
{as per paragraph 33 of AASB 5: Non-current Assefs Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations)

Current period - A% | Previous
corresponding
period — A%
13.1 Revenue - 1,212,058
13.2 Expense - (488,071)
13.3 Profit (loss) from discontinued operations - 723,987
hefore income tax
13.4 income tax expensef{benefit) (as per para 81 (h) of - (217,196)
AASB 112)
135 Gain ({loss) on sale/disposal of - -
discontinued operations
13.6 Income tax expense (as per paragraph 81(h) of AASB - -
112)
Movements in Equity
(as per paragraph 97 of AASB 101; Financial Statement Presentation)
Number Number Paid-up | Current Previous
issued listed value period — correspondin
{cents) A% g period —
A$
148  Ordinary securities
(description)
147 Balance at start of 16,100,000 -] $0.2848 | 4,300,118 3,559,215
period
14.8 a) Increases 12,103,334 | 27,203,334 $0.3000 3,631,000 740,903
through issues
14.9 b} Decreases - - - -
through returns
of capital,
buybacks etc.
14.10 Balance at end of perlod | 27,203,334 | 27,203,334 { $0.2915 | 7,931,118 4,300,118




14141

14.12

14.13

14.14

14.15

Convertible Debt
Securities

{description &
conversion factor)

Balance at start of
period

a) Increases

through Issues

b) Decreases
through
maturity,
converted.

Balance at end of period

At reporting date, the Company had on issue three (3) separate
Convertibie Notes. Fach Mote is secured by a separate fixed and
floating charge over the Company. Each Note has a face value of
$250,000 (with consequential right of conversion at a rate of $2.00
per share into 125,000 ordinary shares in the Company} and bears
interest at the rate of 1% per annum payable semi-annually in
arrears. The Notes mature on 31 December 2010, 30 June 2011 and
31 December 2011

5 Notes with a
face value of
$1,260,000
convertible
into 625,000
ordinary
shares

2 Notes with a
face value of
$500,000
convertible
into 250,000
ordinary
shares

$1,250,000

$500,000

$1,500,000

$250,000

3 Notes with a
face value of
$750,000
convertible
inte 375,000
ordinary
shares

$750,000

The Equity
Component
per AASB132
is $414,065)

$1,250,000

{The Equity
Component per
AASB1321s
$414,065)

14.32

Total Securities

27,203,334

27,203,334

7,931,118

8,345,183

4,714,183




14.33
14.34
14.35

14.38

Reserves

Balance at start of period
'fransfers to/from reserves
Total for the period

Balance at end of period

Current period — A$

Previous
corresponding period

14.37

Total reserves

14.38
14.39
14.40
14.41
14.42
14.43

14.44

Retained sarnings

Balance at start of period
Changes In accounting policy
Restated balance

Profit for the period

Total for the period
Dividends

Balance at end of period

(6,193,427) (6,412,300)
92,206 218,873
92,206 218,873

(6,102,457) (6,193,427)




Details of aggregate share of profits (losses) of associates and joint venture entities

{equity method)

(as per paragraph Aus 37.1 of AASB 128 Investments in Assaciates and paragraph Aus 57.3 of AASB 1 31: intarests in Joint

Name of associate or joint venture entity

Reporting entities percentage holding

Venlures)

Armstrong Registry Services Limited
ACN 139 056 643

30%

Current period - $A | Previous
correspoending period
15.1 Profit (loss) before income tax {39,066) -
15.2 income tax (expense)/benefit 11,250 -
15.3 Profit (loss}) after tax {27,816} -
15.4 Impairment losses - -
15.5 Reversals of impairment losses - =
15.6 Share of non-capital expenditure contracted - "
for (excluding the supply of inventories)
15.7 Share of net profit (loss)} of associates and (8,345) -
joint venture entities
Control gained over entities having material effect
{See note 8)
16.1 Mame of issuer (or group) Nil
$A
16.2 Consolidated profit (loss) after tax of the issuer (or group) since | Nil
the date in the current period on which control was acquired
16.3 Date from which profit {loss) in #em 16.2 has been calculated Nl
16.4 Profit (Joss) after tax of the issuer (or group) for the whole of the | Nil

previous corresponding period




Loss of control of entities having material effect

{See nofe 8)
171 Name of issuer (or group) Nif
$A
17.2 Consolidated profit {loss) after tax of the entity {or group) for the Nil
current period to the date of loss of control
17.3 Date from which the profit (loss) in tem 7.2 has been calculated Nil
17.4 Consolidated profit {loss) after tax of the entity {or group) while il
controlled during the whole of the previous corresponding period
17.5 Contribution to consolidated profit (loss) from sale of interest Nit

{eading to ioss of contral

Material interests in entities which are not controlled entities
The sconomic entity has an interest (that is material to it) in the following entities.

Percentage of ownership interest | Contribution to profit (loss) (tem
{ordinary securities, units etc) held | 1.9)
at end of period or date of
disposal
18.1 Equity accounted Current period | Previous Current period | Previous
associated entities corresponding | A corresponding
period period $A'000
Equity accounted
Armstrong Registry 30% - (8,345) -
Services Limited
18.2 Total 30% - (8,345) -
18.3 Other material Non equity accounted (i.e. part of
interests item 1.9)
Nil Nil Nil Nil
18.4 Total Nil Nii Nil Nil




Reports for industry and geographical segments

Information on the industry and geographical segments of the entity must be reported for the current
period in accordance with AASB 8: Operating segments. Because of the different sfructures
employed by entitles, a pro forma is nof provided.

Current period - Previous
$A corresponding
period - A
Segments
Revenue: Refer to note 27 in | Refer o note 27 in
the 2010 Annual the 2010 Annual
report attached repart attached

19.1 External sales

19.2 Inter-segment sales

19.3  Total (consofidated total equal to fem 1.1)

194  Segment result Refer to note 27 in | Refer to note 27 in
the 2010 Annual the 2010 Annual
repart attached report attached

1.5 Unallocated expenses

19.6  Operating profit (equal to tem 1.5)

18.7  Interest expense Refer to note 27 in Refer to note 27 in
the 2010 Annual the 2010 Annual
report attached report attached

19.8 Interest income

19.9  Share of profits of associates

19.1C¢  Income tax expense

19.11 Net profit (consolidated total equal to tem 1.9) Refer to note 27 in | Refer fo note 27 in
the 2010 Annual the 2010 Annual
report attached report attached

Other information

1912 Segment assets

1913 investments in equity method associates

19.14 Unaliocated assets

19.15 Total assets (equal to tem 3.78) Refer to note 27 in Refer to riote 27 in
the 2010 Annual the 2010 Annual
report attached report attached

19.16 Segment liabilities

18.17 Unallocated liabilities

19.18 Toftal liabilities (equal to item 3.32)

12.19 Capital expenditure Refer to note 27 in | Refer to note 27 in
the 2010 Annual the 2010 Annual
report attached report attached

18.20 Depreciation

18,21 Other non-cash expenses Refer to note 27 in | Refer to note 27 in

the 2010 Annual
report attached

the 2010 Annusl
report attached




NTA Backing

(s note 7)

20.1 Current period Previous
corresponding
period

Net tangible asset backing per ordinary sscurify $0.065 {$0.105)

Non-cash financing and investing activities
Datalls of finanicing and investing transactions which have had a material effect on consolidated

assets and liabilities but did not involve cash flows are as follows. If an amount is quantified, show
comparative amount.

21.1

Plant and equipment to the value of § 375,724 was acquired by way of entering into a hire

purchase agreement.

International Financial Reporting Standards

Under paragraph 39 of AASB 1: First —time Adoption of Ausiralian Equivalents fo International
Financial Reporting Standards, an entity’s first Australian-equivalents-fo-IFRS’s financial report shall
include reconciliations of its equity and profit or loss under previous GAAP fo its equity and profit or
loss under Australian equivalents fo IFRS's. See IG63 in the appendix to AASB 1 for guidance.

221

N/A




Under paragraph 4.2 of AASB 1047: Disclosing the Impacts of Adopting Australian Equivalents to
International Financial Reparting Standards, an entity must disclose any known or reliably estimable
information about the impacts on the financial report had it been prepared using the Australian
equivalents to IFRSs or if the aforementioned impacts are not known or refiably estimable, a

statement to that effect.

222
N/A




Comments by directors

Comments on the following matters are required by the Exchange or, in relation to the half yearly stalement, by AASE 134: Interim
Financial Reporting. The comments do not take the piace of the direclors’ report and slatement (as required by the Corporations
Acl) but may be incorporaled inta the directors’ report and statement. For both half yearly and preliminary final statements, if there
are no comments In a section, state NiL. K there is insufficient space in comment, atfach notes lo this statement.

Basis of accounts preparation
A description of each event since the end of the current pericd which has had a material effect and is
not related to matters already reported, with financial effect quantified (if possible). In a half veariy

report, provide explanatory comments about any seasonal or irregular factors affecting operations (==
per paragraphs 16(b), 16(b) and Aus 16.1 of AASB 134: Inferim Financial Reporting)

N/A

Any other factors which have affected the results in the period, or which are likely to affect results in
the future, including those where the effect could not be guantified.

NIA

Franking credits available and prospecis for paying fully or partly franked dividends for at least the
next year

There were no dividends paid or provided for at balance date. The parent entity’s franking account
balance is $ 114,785.

Changes in accounting policies, estimation methods and measurement bases since the tast annual
report are disclosed as follows.

(Disclose changes in the half yearly statement in accordance with paragraph16(a) of AASB 134: interim Financial Reporting.
Disclose changes in the preliminary final stafement In accordance with paragraphs 28-29 of 108; Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Emrors.)

N/A




An issuer shall explain how the transition from previous GAAP to Australian equivalents to IFRS’
affected its reported financial position, financial performance and cash flows. (as per paragraph 38 of AASB

1: First-time Adoption of Australian Equivalents to International Finangial Reparting Standards}

N/A

Revisions in estimates of amounts reported in previous periods. For half yearly reports the nature
and amount of revisions in estimates of amounts reported in previous annual reports if those revisions
have a material effect in this half year (as per paragraph 16(d) of AASB 134: Inferim Financial Reporting)

N/A

Changes in contingent liabilities or assets. For half yearly reports, changes in contingent liabilittes
and contingent assts since the last annual report (as per paragraph 16() of AASB 134: Interim Financial Reporting)

N/A

The nature and amount of items affecting assets, liabilities, equity, profit or loss, or cash flows that
are unusual because of their nature, size or incidence (as per paragraph 16(c) of AASE 134; Interim Financial
Reporiing)

N/A




Effect of changes in the composition of the entity during the interim period, including business
combinations, acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and long-term investments, restructurings and
discontinued operations (as ner paragraph 16(}) of AASB 134: Interim Financial Reporting)

Issued Capital

Buring the perlod, the Company listed on the National Stock Exchange of Australia and raised
$3,631,000.20 by way of issuing 12,103,334 ordinary shares in accordance with the Prospectus dated
17 August 2009. The share issue, together with the cost of the issue, is accounted for in equity as
follows:

Consolidated Entity
2010 2009
Ordinary shares 7,818,679 4,300,118
Transaction costs {348,350) (112,439)
Convertible notes recoghised in equity 414,065 414,065
Issued Capitl 7,884,394 4,601,744

The movement in the number of shares on issue is accounted for as follows:

Consolidated Entity

2010
Movement in ordinary shares on issue
Ordinary shares on hand at 30/06/2009 15,100,000
tssued during the period 12,103,334

Ordinary shares on hand at 30/06/2610 27,203,334




Notes

For announcement to the market The percentage changes referred to in this section are
the percentage changes calculated by comparing the current period’s figures with those for
the previous corresponding period. Do not show percentage changes i the change is from
profit to loss or loss to profit, but still show the amount of the change up or down. if changes
in accounting policies or procedures have had a material effect on reported figures, do not
show either directional or percentage changes in profits. Explain the reason for the

omissions in the note at the end of the announcement section. fssuers are encouraged to
attach notes or fuller explanations of any significant changes to any of the items in page 1.
The area at the end of the announcement section can be used to provide a cross reference to
any such attachment.

True and fair view If this statement does not give a true and fair view of a matter {for
example, because compliance with an Accounting Standard is required) the /ssuer must
attach a note providing additional information and explanations to give a true and fair view.

Consolidated statement of financial perfformance
Item 1.1 The definition of “revenue” is set out in AASE 118 Revenue

ltem 1.6 This item refers to the total tax attributable to the amount shown in item 7. 5.
Tax includes income tax and capital gains tax {if any) but excludes taxes
treated as expenses from ordinary activities (eg. fringe benefits tax).

Income tax If the amount provided for income tax in this statement differs (or would differ
but for compensatory items) by more than 15% from the amount of income tax prima facie
payable on the profit before tax, the issuer must explain in a note the major items responsible
for the difference and their amounts. The rate of tax applicable to the franking amount per
dividend should be inserted in the heading for the column “Franking rate applicable’ for items
in section 9. ‘

Consolidated statement of financial position

Format The format of the consolidated statement of financial position should be followed as
closely as possible. However, additional items may be added if greater clarity of exposition
will be achieved, provided the disclosure still mests the requirements of AASB 134: Inferim
Financial Reporting, and AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements. Banking
institutions, trusts and financial institutions may substitute a clear liquidity ranking for the
Current/Non-Current classification.

Basis of revaltuation If there has been a material revaluation of non-current assets
(including investments) since the last annual report, the issuer must describe the basis of
revaluation adopted. The descripticn must meet the requirements of AASB 116: Froperty,
Plant and Equipment. If the /ssuer has adopted a procedure of regular revaluation, the basis
for which has been disclosed and has not changed, no additional disclosure is required.

Consolidated statemnent of cash flows For definitions of "cash” and other terms used in
this statement see AASB 107: Cash Flow Statements. Issuers should follow the form as
closely as possible, but variations are permitted if the directors (in the case of a trust, the
management company) believs that this presentation is inappropriate. However, the
presentation adopted must meet the requirements of AASB 107,

Net tangible asset backing Net tangible assets are determined by deducting from total
tangible assets all claims on those assets ranking ahead of the ardinary securities (i.e. all
liabilities, preference shares, outside equity interests, etc). Mining issuers are not required to
state a net tangible asset backing per ordinary securify.

Gain and loss of control over entities The gain or loss must be disclosed if it has a
material effect on the consolidated financial statements. Details must include the




contribution for each gain or iess that increased or decreased the issuer’'s consolidated
operating profit {loss) after tax by more than 5% compared to the previous corresponding
period.

9. Equity accounting If an issuer adopts equity accounting, no comparative equity accounting
figures are required in the first period following its adoption.

10. Rounding of figures This statement anticipates that the information required is given to
the nearest $1,000. However, an /ssuer may report exact figures, if the $A’000 headings are
amended. If an issuer qualifies under ASIC Class Order 98/0100 dated 15 July 2004, it may
report to the nearest million doltars, or to the nearest $100,000, if the $A'000 headings are
amended.

11. Comparative figures Comparative figures are to be presented in accordance with AASB
101: Presentation of Financial Statements or AASB 134: Inferim Financial Reporting as
appropriate and are the unadjusted figures from the last annual or half year report as
appropriate. However, if the previously reported figures are adjusted to achieve greater
comparability, in accordance with an accounting standard or other reason, a note explaining
the adjustment must be included with this statement. if no adjustment is made despite a lack
of comparability, 2 note explaining the position should be attached.

12. Additional information An issuer may discliose additional information about any matter,
and must do so if the information is material to an understanding of the financial statements.
The information may be an expansion of the material contained in this statement, or
contained in a note attached to the statement. The requirement under the listing rules for an
issuer to complete this statement does not prevent the issuer issuing statements more
frequently. Additional material lodged with the ASIC under the Corporations Act must also
be given to the Exchange. For example, a directors’ report and declaration, if lodged with
the ASIC, must be given to the Exchange.

13. Accounting Standards the Exchange will accept, for example, the use of international
Accounting Standards for foreign issuers. If the standards used do not address a topic, the
Australian standard on that topic {if one exists) must be complied with.

14. Borrowing corporations This statement may be able to be used by an issuer required to
comply with the Corporations Act as part of its half yearly financial statements if prepared in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.

15. Details of expenses AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Staternents requires disclosure
of expenses according to either their nature or function. For foreign entities, there are similar
requirements in other accounting standards accepted by the Exchange. Issuers must
disclose details of expenses using the layout (by nature or function} employed in their
accounts,

The information in ffems 7.1 - 7.2 may be provided in an attachment to Appendix 3

Relevant items AASB 101: Presentation of Financial Statements requires the separate
disclosure of specific revenues and expenses which are of a size, nature or incidence that
disclosure is refevant, as defined in AASB 101, in explaining the financial performance of the
issuer, There is an equivalent requirement in AASB 134: interim Financial Reporting. For
foreign entities, there are similar reguirements in other accounting standards accepted by the
Exchange.

16. Dollars If reporting is not in A$, all references to $A must be changed to the reporting
currency. If reporting is not in thousands of dollars, ali references to “000" must be changed to
the reporting value.




17.

Discontinuing operations

Entities must either provide a description of any significant activities or events relating to
discontinuing operations equivalent to that required by paragraph 7.5 (g} of AASB 134: Interirr
Financial Reporting, or, the details of discontinuing operations they are required to disclose in
their accounts in accordance with AASE §: Non-current Assets for Sale and Discontinued
Operations

In any case, the information may be provided as an attachment to this Appendix 3




Annual meeting
{Prefiminary final statement only)

The annual meeting wili be held as follows:

Place ’ tenna of Hobart, corner of Runnymede
street & Salamanca place, Battery Paint,
Tasmania, 7004

Date Friday 10" September 2010
Time 2:30pm
Approximate date the annual report will be avaitable Wednesday 4™ August 2010

Compliance statement

1. This statement has been prepared under accounting policies which comply with accounting
standards as defined in the Corporations Act or other standards acceptable to the Exchange
(see note 13).

jdentify other standards used Nii

2. This statement, and the financial statements under the Corporations Act {if separaie), use the
same accounting policies.

3. This statement gives a true and fair view of the matters disclosed (see note 2).
4, This statement is based on financial statements to which one of the following applies:
The financial statements have been 0 The financial statements have been

audited. subject to review by a registered auditor
{or overseas equivalent).

The financial statements are in the The financial statements have not yet
process of being audited or subject to been audited or reviewed.
review,

5. If the accounts have been or are being audited or subject to review and the audit report is not

attached, details of any qualifications are attached/will follow immediately they are available*
{delete one). {Half yearly statement only - the audit report must be atfached fo this statement if the statement s to
satisfy the requirements of the Corporations Act.)

6. The issuer has a formally constituted audit committee.

Sign here: Date: 4™ August 2010

{Director)

Print name: Nigel B Elias
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DIRECTORS REPORT

Your Directors present their report on Print Mail Logistics Limited (“Company”) and its controfled entities (collectively
referred to as “Consolidated Entity”) for the year ended 30 June 2010.

Directors

Thie names of each person who has been a Director of the Company during the year and to the date of this report are:

John W Woods

Nigel 8 Elias

Robert C Cameron {appointed 1 Aprll, 2010)

fobert K Stewart (resigned 11 March, 2010}

william K Downie (appointed 11 March 2010, resigned 1 April 2010).

The Directors have been in office since the start of the financial year to the date of this raport unless otherwise stated.

Company Secretaries

The names of each parson who has been a Company Secretary of the Company during the year and to the date of this report,
together with their qualifications and experience are:

fan B Hopkins — Has a Bachelor of Commerce {University of New South Wales), and is a Certified Practicing Accountant. Mr
Hopkins was appointed Company Secretary on 2 june 2004, and has 20 years experience as a Cornpany Secretary,

Adrian J Pereira — Has a Bachelor of Commerce (University of Tasmania}, and i5 a Chartered Accountant. Mr Pereira was
appointed Company Secretary on 25 lanuary 2007. Mr Pereira is the Chief Financial Officer of the Company with 5 years
experience in that role together with 4 years experience in a public Chartered Accounting firm.

Meetings of Directors

During the financlal year 20 meetings of Directors (including three meetings of Committees of Directors) were held.
Attendances by each Director during the year were as follows;

Directors’ meetings Committes meetings
Number of meetings | Number attended | Number of meetings | Number attended
Jahn W Woods 17 17 3 3
Nigel B Ellas 17 17 3 3
Robert € Cameron 3 i 3 3
Robert K Stewart 11 10 - -
William K Downie 1 1 - -

Corporate Structure

The Company is a listed public company limited by shares and Is incarporated and domiciled in Australia.
Operating Results

The consolidated profit of the Consolidated Entity after providing for Income tax for the year ended 3@ lune 2010 was
$92,206 (2009: $218,873).

page 3
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Review of Operations

in November 2008, the Company listed on the Nationai Stock Exchange of Australia ("N5X”). An Initial Public Offering {(“1PO"}
raised $3,631,000 ($2,972,275 net of cosis associated with the PO} of which $2,290,099 was utilised to repay debt and
$682,176 was utilised to contribute towards funding capital expenditures.

in December 2009 and June 2010 the Company repaid LS. Holdings Pty id {In Liquidation) ACN 051 792 575 secured
convertible notes “E” and “F” respectively - each with a face value of $250,000. As at the date of this report, the Company
owed this crediter a further $750,000 — repayable as to $250,000 in each of December 2010 and June and December 2011.

Over the course of the year, the offset printing market in Tasmania has heen characterised by over capacity with a number of
industry participants operating at margins which, in the opinion of the management of the Company, are unsustainable.
However, the digital variable data printing market has shown some resilience as both governmental and corporate
organisations seek to conduct thelr businesses with increased efficiency. During the year the Consolidated Entity has had
some success in entering markets outside of the state of Tasmania-

In light of the current business environment your Board considers the resuilts of the Consalidated Entity to be satisfactory.

Financial Position

The Consolidated Entity's financial position has improved from a negative net worth of $1,591,683 {restated]) at 30 June 2009
to a positive net worth of $1,781,937 at 30 June 2010. This improvernent has arisen primarily as a result of the IPO raising
42,972,275 net of the costs associated with the IPO.

Your Board considers the Consolidated Entity’s financial position to be satisfactory.

Key Business Strategies
The Conhsolidated Entity’s business strategies are to leverage its industry experience and credibility to provide transactional

printing and related communication solutions to the Australian and selected international markets.

Future Prospects

with the objective of meximising the Consolidated Entity’s net worth, the Consolidated Entity proposes to increase revenue
by way of concentrating on markets outside of the state of Tasmania.

Significant Changes in the State of Affairs

The Company listed on the NSX in November 2005. A total of 53,631,000 was raised by way of this [PO with the proceeds
utilised to repay debt and fund capital expenditures.

Principal Activities

The principal activities of the Consolidated Entity during the fimancial year were the rendering of printing, mailing and
distribution services,

After Balance Date Events

No matters or clrcumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which would significantly affect or may
significantly affect the operations of the Consolidated Entity, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
Consolidated Entity in subsequent financial years.

Environmental issues

The Consolidated Entity takes 2ll reasonable action to ensure that it meets general environmenta! standards and regulations.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT {continued) gv
o z
Dividends &
No dividends were paid or declared during the financial year (2009: nil). No recommendation for payment of dividends has
heen made.
Options

No options over issued shares or interests in the Company or a controlled entity were granted during or since the end of the
financial year and there were no options outstanding at the date of this report.

Indemnification of Officers or Auditors

The Company has entered into a deed of access, insurance and indemnity {“Deed”) with each of the Directors of the
Company.

The Company has undertaken to indemnify each Director In certain circumstances and to maintain Directors’ and Officers’
insurance cover in favour of each Director for seven years after the Director has ceased to be a Director.

To the extent permitted by faw and to the extent available In the market at a cost that would not be unfairly prejudicial to
the Company, the Company must, for the duration of the Deed and for the period ended seven years after the Director has
ceased to be an officer of the Company;

- naintain and pay the premium on a Directors and Officers insurance policy; or
- ensure that a related body corporate, as defined by section 9 of the Corporations Act 2001 maintalns and pays the
premium on a Directors and Officers insurance palicy.

The Company has executad a Directors and Officers Insurance policy during the year. The amount of that insurance pre mium
is 0,702 per annum,

During or since the end of the financial year, the Company has not given an indemnity or entered into an agreerment to
indemnify, or paid or agreed to pay insurance premiums to indemnify the external auditor.

Proceedings on Behalf of the Company

No person has applied for leave of the Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Company or intervene inany proceedings

to which the Campany is a party for the purpase of taking responsibility on behalf of the Company for all or any part of those
proceedings.

The Company was not a party to any such proceedings during the year.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Directors’ Particulars

John W Waods - Chairman (Non-executive)

Mr Woods is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia and has held the positions of Chairman of the
Institute’s State Council in Tasmania and Chalrman of the State Membership Committee. He served as a National Councillor
from 1982 to 1986 and has been a member of the National Membership Committee, the Mational Disciplinary Committee,
the National Education Committee and a member of the Natlonal Examination Commitiee.

In addition to being a registered Company Liquidator since 1975, Mr Woods is an Official Liquidator, is a registered Tax Agent
and, until 2008, a Company Auditor, Mr Woods currently sits on the Tasmanian Regional Liaison Committee of the Australian
Securities and Investments Commission {ASIC) and is a past member of the Tasmanlan Auditors and Liquidaters Disciplinary
Board.

Mr Waods is Chalrman of the Company having been appointed a Director of the Company in June, 2009.

Mr Woods' special responsibilities include that of Chairman of the Audit and Risk Management Committee, Chairman of the
Nominations Coramittee and Chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Mr Woods holds a beneficial interest in 50,000 ordinary shares in the Company.

Nigel B Eligs —Director (Executive)

Mr Elias has extensive national and international experience as a Company Director and Chief Executive Officer of
organisations including the Genaware Group and Australian Card Services. Other roles have included positions with the Bank

of Mantreal, the Mercantife Bank of Canada, Canadian Commercial and Industrial Bank, Citicorp Australia and GBC Australia.

Wr Elias has been duly admitted to the degree of Bachelor of Arts {University of Lancaster, UK) and Master of Business
Administration (Columbia University, USA).

M Elias is Managing Director of the Company having been appointed Chief Executive Officer and Director of the Company in
Jane 2004.

Mr Elias is responsible for all aspects of the Consolidated Entity’s activities.
Mr Elias holds a beneficial interest in 3,035,720 ordinary shares in the Company.
Robert C Cameron - Director (Non-executive}

Mr Cameron was appointed a Director of the Company on 1 April 2010 having fulfited the position of Director of the
Company in prior financial years.

Mr Cameron is a Fellow of the mstitute of Chartered Accountants and a former Director of Asfa Pacific Infrastructure Limited
ACN 010 966 793,

Mr Cameron holds a beneficial interest in 504,000 ordinary shares in the Company.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Auditor's Declaration

A copy of the Auditor’s Independence Declaration as requirad under section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 i5 set out on
page 13 of this report.

Non-audit Services

The Board, in accordance with advice from the Audit and Risk Marnagement Committee, is satisfied that the provision of non-
audit services during the year is compatible with the general standard of independence for auditors imposed by the
Corparations Act 2001. The Directors are satisfled that the services disclosed below did not compromise the external
auditor’s Independence for the following reasons:

- all non-audit services are reviewed and approved by the Board, in accordance with advice from the Chief Financial
Officer prior to commencement to ensure they do not adversely affect the integrity and objectivity of the auditor; and

the nature of the services provided do not compromise the general principles relating to auditor independence in
accordance with APES 110: Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants set by the Accounting Professlonal and Ethical
standards Board.

The following fees for non-audit services were paid/are payable to the external auditors during the year ended 30 June 2010:

Taxation advice $10,750.00
Total $10,750.00

Corporate Governance

The Directars of the Company support and adhere to the principles of corporate governance recognising the need for the
highest standard of carporate behaviour and accountability. A review of the Company’s corporate governance practices was
undertaken during the year. A copy of the Corporate Governance Statement is set out on page 14 of this report.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT {continued)

Remuneration Report

Remuneration Policy

The Board's policy for determining remuneration of the key management personnel and executives (collectively referred to
as “Executives”) for the Cansolidated Entity, which is set by the Remuneration Committee, is set out as follows:

. remuneration is determined in the context of general market and industry practice {so far as directly relevant
benchmarks can be identified for comparative purposes) and the need to attract and retain high-caliber personnel;

- Executives, comprising of the Directors, Company Secretaries, the General Manager and the Chief Financial Officer,
have authority and responsibility for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Consolidated Entity;

- compensation levels are competitively set to attract and retain appropriately qualified and experienced Executives;
and
- the compensation structures explained below are designed to attract suitably qualified candidates, reward the
achievement of strategic objectives and achieve the broader autcome of creation of value for shareholders. The
compensation structures take into account:
- the capability and experience of the Executives;
- tha Executive’s ability to control the relevant business perfarmance;
- the Consolidated Entity’s earnings; and
- the growth in share price and the delivery of constant returns on shareholder wealth.

There is no remuneration paid or payable to a persen inthe form of securities.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT {(continued)

Remuneration Report (continued)

Executives

The following table provides employment details of persons who were, during the financial year, Executives of the

Consolidated Entity.

Nigel B Managing 2.5years 2 months. in the event - b 687% | 33.3% 100%
Elias Diractor commendngon1 | the employment
July 2008 and cantract is terminated,
terminatingon 31 | Mr Eliasks entitledto a
December 2011 payment equivalent to 4
months salary,
Peter A General 2.5years 2 months. [ the event 5.5% 84.9% 9.6% 100%
Macteod Manager commendngoni | the employment
luly 2009 and cantract Is terminated,
terminatingon31 | Mr Macleod is entitied
December 2011 to a payment eguivalent
ta 6 months salary,
Adrian} Chief 2.5years 2 months, In the event 5.7% 88.2% 6.1% 100%
Pereira Financial cammencingonl | the employment
Officer / July 2009 and contract is terminated,
Company terminatingon 31 | Mr Pereira ls entitled to
Secretary December 2011 a payment egulvalent to
6 months salary.
lan B Company Agppointed 2 Jume | - - - 100% 100%
Hopkins® Secratary 2004
John W Chairman/ Appointed 1 June | - - 100% - 100%
Woods Non- 2009
executive
Director
Robert C Non- Appointed L April | - - 100% - 100%
Cameron executive 2m0
Diractar
Raobert £ Chairman/ 7 June 2007 -11 - - 100% - 100%
Stewart™ Non- March 2010
executlve
Director
william ¥ Non- 11 March 2010 - - - 100% - 100%
Downie executive 1 April 201¢
Director

annual report 2002-2010

*Mr Hopkins held the position of Company Secretary for the entirety of the financiat year having been appointed to the position of Company Secretary on2
June 2004. During the period to 22 October 2003, Mr Hopkins was employed by Allens Arthur Robinson Corporate Pty Ltd ACN 001 314 512 and the
Consolidated Entity contracted with Allens Arthur Robinson Corporate Pty tid ACN 001 314 512 for the provision of Mr Hopking' company secretarial
servicas to the Consolidated Entity. During that period, the Consolidated Entity paid fees totalling 420,053 to Allens Arthur Robinson Corporate Pty Ltd ACN
001 314 512 in consideration for the provision of company secretarial services by M+ Hopkins. On 13 November 2009, the Company entered into an
agreement with Hopkins Corporate Solutions Pty Ltd ACN 139 791 825 for the provision of company secretarial services on account of the Consolidated
Entity, During the period 22 October 2009 to 30 June 2010, the fees paid or payable for the provision of company secretarial services to the Consolidated
Entity totalled $14,048.00 plus G5T.

*Fixed salary consists of base salary as well as employer contributions to superannuation funds. Remunaration is reviewed annually by the Remuneration
Committee through a progess that considess individual, business and the overall performance of the Consalidated Entity.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Remuneration Report {continued)

Executives {continued)

*puring the perlod, performance related bonuses totalling $12,670 were paid to Mr MacLeod {as to 56,335} and Mr Pereira {as to $6,335). The bonuses were
paid in July, 2000 based on financial performance measures that were met at 30 June 2009. The performance bonuses were calculated using the following
Formula

censolidated Entities Earnings before Depreciation and Amortisation {"EBDA"} 1

{Number of employees at balance date) 4
tFfective 1 luly 2009, Mr Macleod and Mr Pereira were excluded from participation in the staff profit share arrangement and effactive 31 December 2008,
the staff profit share was terminated. The measure was adopted at inception to motivate the staff, including Executives, to increase sharehokder weaith by
maximising EBDA.

*Ihere have been no changes to the persons or posiions occupied from thatlisted abave subsequent to year-end.

Sburing the pertod, There was no remuneration paid to Mr Stewart.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT {continued)

Remuneration Report (continued)

Remuneration Details
The following table of payments and benefits details, in respect to the financial year, the components of remuneration for
each Executive of the Consolidated Entity.

Nigef B 160,586 80,225 B - 21,675 - - - - v - - | 262,486
Elias

Peter A 0,000 11,207 - 4,835 4,543 - - - - .- - - 115,585
Macleod

Adrian 90,000 11,207 - 501 9,543 - . - - - - - | 111,251
Perelra

lan B - - - | 14048 - - - - - - - - 14,048
Haopkins®

lohnW 7,500 - - - 675 - - - - - - - 8,175
Woods

Robert C 7,500 - - - 675 - - - - - - - 8,175
Camerorn

Robert K - - - - - - - - - - - - -
Stewart

Willlam K 1,808 - - - 163 - - - - - - - 1,971
Dawnle

Total 357,394 | 102,632 - 9,384 42,274 - - - - - - - 521,691

'During the financial year, the following Executives were paid benuses as consideration for agreeing to eater into a Deed of Employment with the Company

on 1 July 2009;
- Mr Elias $87,447 (including superannuation of 57,222}
- Mr Macleod 95,415 {including superannuation of $920)
- Mr Pereira 45 415 [Incfuding superannuation of $920),

*During the financial year, the following Executives were paid 3 bonus related to a staff profit share arrangement for the period ended 30 June 2009 in
accordance with ernployment agreements with the Company that applied on 30 June 2009

- Mr Macleod $6,335 (including superannuation of $523)
- Mr Pereira 46,336 {including superarnuation of 5523},
The following Executives were paid an ex gratia bonus for additional duties carried out dufing the IPO:
- Mr Macleod 5900
- Mr Pereira 3505.

*During the financial year, other short-term benefits were pald an account of motor vehicle allowsnces paid to Mr Macleod [as to $4,835) and Mr Pereira
(a5 to $501).

*Mr Hopkins held the position of Company Secretary for the entirety of the financiat year having been appointed to the pasition of Company Secretary on 2
June 2004. Dusing the period to 22 Qctaber 2008, Mr Hopkins was employed by Allens Arthur Robinson Corporate Pty Ltd ACN 001 314 512 and the
Consolidated Entity contracted with that law firm for the provision of Mr Hopkins' company secretarial services to the Consolidated Entity. During that
period, the Consolidated Entity paid fees totalling $20,053 o Allens Arthur Robinson Corporate Py Ltd ACN 001 314 512 in consideration for the provision of
company secretarial services by Mr Hopkins. On 13 November 2009, the Company entered into an agreement with Hopkins Corporate Solutions Pry Ltd ACN
139 761 825 for the provision of company secretarial services on account of the Company and the Consolidated Entity. During the period 22 October 2009 to
30 June 2010, the fees paid of payable for the provision of campany secretarial services to the Consolidated Entity totalled 514,048.00 plus G5T.




DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

Remuneration Report (continued)

Loans to Executives

There are no lpans to Executives at balance date.

Share and Options Granted to Executives

No options were granted during the year or in prior financial years.

Executives’ Interest in Contracts

On 2 July 2007, Mr Elias entered into a call option in respect of the secured converiible notes issued to ESL Holdings Pty Ltd
ACN 051 792 575 {currently LSL Holdings Pty Ltd (In Liquidation) ACN 051 792 575).

On 13 November 2009, the Company entered into an Agreement with Hopkins Corporate Solutions Pty Ltd ACN 139 791 825
for the provision of company secretarial services by Mr Hopkins to the Consolidated Entity. The Agreement does not include
a termination date however i required, the Company Secretary's services may be terminated at any time.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of directors,

lohn W Woods
Chairman

4t August 2010
Hobart, Tasmania

L ¥ B _ B B -5
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

This statement outlines the primary corporate governance practices of Print Mail Logistics Limited ("Company”} that have
been in place during the year.

Board of Directors

The current Board of directors consists of John W Woods, Nigel B Eltas and Robert C Cameron.

The activities of the Board are governed by the Beard Charter. in general, the Board's functions and responsibilities are to:
- chart strategy and set financial targets for the Consolidated Entity;

- monitor the implementation and execution of strategy and performance against financial targets; and

- appoint and oversee the performance of executive management and generally to take and fulfil an effective
feadership role in relation to the Consolidated Entity.

The composition of the Board is determined according to the following principles:
- the Board must comprise members with a broad range of experience, expertise, skills and contacts relevant to the
Consotidated Entity and its business;

- there must be at least three Directors;

- the number of Directors may be increased where the Board considers that additional expertise is required in specific
areas or when an outstanding candidate is identlfied; and

- at least half of the Board must be non-executive Directors at Jeast two of whom must also be independent.

One third of the Directors (other than a Managing Director} must retire at each Annual General Meeting of the Company.
Additionally, each Director must not hold office longer than threa consecutive Annual General Meetings witheut standing for
re-election.

The Board has also established committees ta assist in carrying out its function and for its effective and efficient
performance. The committees established at the date of this report are the following;
- Audit and Risk Management Committee;

- Nominations Committee; and
- Remuneration Committee.

Due to the size of the Company and the composition of the Board, each of the Directors is nominated to each of the three
committees.

Powers of Managing Director

Mr Elias is the current Managing Director of the Company. The Managing Director is able to exercise any powers conferred
on him by the Board pursuant to Rule 18.1 of the Constitution.

Role of Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring the Company meets its compliance with reporting obligations and
managing the respective charter and is also accountable to the Board on all corporate governance matters.

Access o Information

Each Director has the right to seek independent legal or ather professional advice at the expense of the Company in the
event of any doubt regarding matters arising in the course of carrying out their duties.

page 14
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

Remuneration Policy
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Pursuant to the Constitution, the Directars are to be paid out of the funds of the Company as remuneration for their services.
The amount is to be determined by the Company in a general meeting and divided among them in the proportion and
manner as they agree or, In default of agreement, equally.

The Company has also established a Remuneration Committee te advise on the remuneration {including non-monetary forms

of remuneration such as incentive plans and salary packaging) payable to senior management and non-executive Directors of
the Company under its Charter.

Managing Directors’ fees are separately determined by the Board on advice from the Remuneration Commitiee.

A copy of the Remuneration Report is set out inthe Directors’ Report.

Appointment of Directors

The Naomination Committee has the role of developing suitable criteria (in regards to experience, expertise, skills,
gualifications, contacts and other qualities) for Board candidates. If necessary, the Board will consider and conduct refevant
ASIC and Federal Police Seatches on each candidate.

Upon appointment of a Director the Board will direct that the proper docuimentation be prepared notifying the National
Stock Exchange of Australia (“NSX”) and the Australian Securities and Investments Commission (“ASIC") of the appointment.

Ethical Conduct

Pursuant to the Company’s Code of Ethics and Values, all Directors are encouraged to achieve the highest possible standards
in the discharge of their obligations. Each Director has an obligation to comply with the spirit and principles of the code and
law to:

- act in good faith in the best interests of the Company and for a proper purpose;

- observe confidentiality;

- actin the interests of all shareholders to avoid any potential conflict of interest;

- exercise a reasonable degree of care and diligence;

- not make improper use of information; and

- not make improper use of their position.

Similarly, the Board has adopted a Code of Conduct for Transactions in Securlties which governs the ability of Directors,
senior management and employees to trade in Company shares.

Continuous Disclosure and Communication with Shareholders

As set out in the Company’s Charter, the Board alms to ensure that Shareholders are informed of alt major developments
affecting the Consolidated Entity's state of affairs.

Information is communicated to Shareholders as follows:
- the Company's continuous disclosure obligations are reviewed as a standing item on the agenda for each regular

meeting of the Board. Each Director is required at every such meeting te confirm detatls of any matter within their
knowledge that might require disclosure to the market;

- the annual report is distributed to all shareholders. The Board ensures that the annual report includes relevant
information about the operations of the Consolidated Entity during the year, changes in the state of affairs of the
Consolidated Entity, and details of future developments in addition to the other disclosures required by the
Corporations Act 2001;
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CORPQORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

Continuous Disclosure and Communication with Shareholders (continued)

proposed major changes in the Consolidated Entity which may impact on share ownarship rights and the removal and
appointment of Directors are submitted to a vote of shareholders at an Annual General Meeting (“AGM”). If
resolutions are required to be put to Sharehalders before the next AGM, a general meeting will be called with at least
28 days’ notice in accordance with the Constitution and the Corporations Act 2001. The Board encourages the full
participation of Sharehalders at the AGM and at other general meetings to ensure a high leve! of accountabitity and
identification with the Consolidated Entity’s strategy and goals;

the external auditors will be requested to attend the AGM and be avatlable to answer questions by Sharehciders on
the conduct of the audit and the preparation and content of the audit report;

the half-yearly report contains surnmarised financial information and a review of the operations of the Consolidated
Entity during the period. The report is lodged with and is available from the NSX. It is also sent to any Shareholder
whao requests it from the Company;

Company announcements are made in a manner which is factuai, timely, clear, and ohjective, and 50 &$ not to omit
any information material to decisions of Shareholders and potential investors in the Company; and

information concerning the Company, including copies of announcements made through the N5X and the annuat
report and half-yearly report, is made available to Shareholders and prospective investors in the Company on the
Company's website. The Company has a continuing commitment to electronic communication with Shareholders and
stakeholders generally including via Its website.

Shareholder Privacy

Parsonal information will generally be collected directly from Shareholders through the use of any of our standard forms,
over the internet, via emall or through a telephone conversation. There may, however, be some instances where parsonal
infarmation will be collected indirectly because it Is unreasonable or impractical to collect personal informatlon directly. A
notification will be issued in these instances in advance, or where that is not possible, as soon as reasonably practical after
the information has been collected.

The Companiy takes afl reasonable measures to ensure all personal information is stored safely to protect it from misuse, loss,
unauthorised access, modification or disclosure, including electronic and physical security measures.

Generally, the Company only uses and discloses personal information for the purposes for which it was collected. However,
personal information may be disclosed to:

service providers, who assist the Company in operating its bustness. These service providers may not be required to
comply with the Company’s privacy policy;

other service providers, who provide the various services which Shareholders have requested and the Company have
arranged. These service providers may not be required to comply with the Company’s privacy policy;

a purchaser of the assets and operations of the Company's business, providing those assets and operations are
purchased as a going concern; and

the Company's related entities and other organisations that are affiliated for the purposes of providing Shareholders
with information about services and various promotions that might be of interest.

A Shareholder may request their personal information by written request to the Company.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

Dealings in Securities

The Constitution permits Directors to acquire securities. Company policy prohibits any dealing in, or procuring the dealing in,
securities except in accordance with the Code of Conduct for Transactions in Securities {“Code").

The Code applies to all Directors and Officers of the Company and to all Executives, including the Chief Financial Officer, and
employees nominated by the Board.

The Code permits Directors and other persons to whom the Code applies to trade in securities during a four week period
starting immediately after the announcement to the NSX of the half-yearly and annual results and after the conclusion of the
AGM provided that;

- the person is not in possession of price sensitive information; and

- the trading s not for short term or speculative gain.

In the event that a transaction is for consideration of greater than $50,000 worth of securities, the prior written approval of
the Chairman is reguired prior to entering into discussions for the potentiai sale of those securities,

Otherwise, trading in securities by Directors and other persons to whom the Code applies is prohibited unless prior written
approval is granted by the Chairman. In the case of any proposed trade by the Chairman, written authority to trade may be
obtained from another non-executive Director.

As explained ahove, Directors are prohibited fram improper use of information or their position both under the Code of
Ethics and Values and the Corporations Act 2001, Therefore, no such person may trade Securities, either for short-term
speculative gain or otherwise, whilst in possession of price sensitive information.

Additionally, the Corporations Act 2001 prohibits trading in securities with a related party unless it is on arm’s length terms or
approved by shareholders.

Heavy sanctions apply If these duties are breached including punitive action commenced by ASIC.

Related Party Contracts

The Directors are under a general duty not to enter into transactions with related parties unless certain conditions have been
fulfilled. Internally, these activities are governed by the respective charters, some of which include the following:

- Board Charter;

« Code of Conduct for Transactions in Securities; and

«  Audit and Risk Management Committee Charter.

The Corporations Act 2001 requires that all related party transactions must be entered into on arm’s length tems ar if not,
appraved by shareholders of the Company as this will generally amount to a ‘material personal interest’ in a matter. This
prohibition is enforced to protect the rights of shareholders.

A Director who has any material personal interest in a matter must not be present at a meeting while the matter is being
considered and must not vote on the matter.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

Conflict of Interest

A conflict of interest ts defined by the Company to mean a situation where a matter which impacts upon a Director’s ability to
ensure that their duties are discharged efficiently, honestly and fairly, arises.

Practical steps taken by the Company to assist in Identifying and avoiding potential conflicts of interest are as follows:
- monitoring and confidentially retaining relevant interest information on all Board and senior staff members for
conflict identification and monitoring;

- undertaking performance reviews and regular recelpting of disclosure notices;

- instituting appropriate remedial or preventative action, which will Include:
- where appropriate quarantining relevant operational areas from other operational areas where information or
activity in one operational area Is not accessible 50 as to ensure that ‘Chinese walils’ prevent the flow of
sensitive or non-public information to other organisational areas unless there is ‘a reason to know’;

- reguiring senior management to monitor and supervise procedures to ensure proper functioning of Chinese
walls and information flows;

- allocating another Board member or employee to discharge the duty where appropriate;
- declining to undertake transactions; or
- always disclosing potential conflicts to third parties.

It is the responsibility of the senior management to ensure that there is an ongoing daily awareness given to identification
and managerment of conflicts of interest and a conflict of interest register is kept and maintained.

Additionally, employees of the Company are also strongly encouraged to disciose all conflicts of interests which may arise.

Audit and Risk Management Committee

The role of the Audit and Risk Management Committee is to advise on the establishment and maintenance of aframework of
internaf control and appropriate ethical standards for the management of the Consolidated Entity, and fulfil the responsibility
for the identification of significant business risks and review of the major risks affecting each business segment and develops
strategies to mitigate these risks.

The Audit and Risk Management Committee members are appointed by the Board, with the current membears being Mr
Woods, Mr Elias and Mr Cameron. However, the Company Secretary is also accountable to the Board on alf carporate
governance matters and is responsible for managing the respective charter,

Business s considered as the Committee may determine, with additional items of business considered as appropriate,
including:
- review of Charter and consider plans for the coming year;

- review of policies on sensitive issues or practices such as environmental issues;
- review of the operation and effectiveness of internal controls;

- mest with the external auditors to discuss next year's audit plan and budget;

- review of the results and findings of the haif-yearly audit/review;

- review of business risks facing the Consolidated Entity, and of the Consolidated Entity’s business continuity plan, and
assessment of the adequacy of internal controls; and

- review of related party transactions.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

Audit and Risk Management Committee (continued)

The external auditors are selected according to criteria set by the Committee which include most significantly:
- the lack of any current or past connection or assoclation with the Company or with any member of senlor
management that could in any way impair, or be seen to carry with it any risk of impairing, the independent external
view they are required to take in relation to the Company and the Consolldated Entity;

- their genera reputation for independence and probity and professional standing within the business community; and

- their knowledge of the industry within which the Company and the Consolidated Entity operate.

Audit staff employed by the external audit partner, including the partner or other principal with overall respansibility for the
engagement, are required to be rotated periodically, and in any event at intervals not exceeding five years, so as to avoid any
risk of impairing the independent external view that the external auditors are reqquired to take in relation to the Company
and the Consolidated Entity. The performance of the external auditor is reviewed on an annual basis.

Risks

The Board has the responsibility for the maintenance of the Company’s strategy which includes the identification of
significant business, legal, financial and organisational risks. This responsibility is fulfilled by the Audit and Risk Management
Cammittee which reviews the major risks affecting each business segment and develops strategies to mitigate these risks and
reparts to the Board following each meeting.

The tisks of the Company’s and the Consolidated Entity’s business are reviewed by the Board following each report by the

Audit and Risk Management Committee. This report is a specific agenda item at each regular meeting of the Board to ensure
that the Company is able to effectively respond to such risks.
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STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 Notes

Revenue from continuing operations 2
Changes in inventories of finished goods and

work in progress

Raw materials and consumahles used

Employee benefits expense

Finance costs 3
Depreciation and amortisation expense 3
Operating leases 3
Occupancy expenses

Office and administration expenses

Ordinary expenses

1055 on foreign currency translation

Loss on disposal of shares

Share of net profits f{loss) of associates

Profit/{Loss) before income tax

Income tax (expense}/benefit 4
Profit/{Loss) for the year from continuing

operations

Profit/{Loss} for the year from discontinued
operations

Profit/(Loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income
Other comprehensive income for the year net of
income tax

Total comprehensive Income/{foss) for the year

Profit/ {Loss) for the year attributable to:
Owners of the parent entity
Non-controlling interest
Profit/(Loss} for the year
Total comprehensive income/{loss) for the year
attributable to:
Owners of the parent entity
Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

Earnings per share and Diluted earnings per
share
from continuing operations:
Basic and Diluted earnings per share (cents) 8

From discontinued operations:
Basic and Diluted earnings per share {cents) 5

From profit for the year:
Basic and Diluted earnings per share {cents)

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENTENTITY
2010 2009 2010 2009
$ $ $ $

7,751,256 7,477,470 7,451,242 8,080,818
{79,095) (25,766) {79,095) {25,766)
{2,817,743)  (2.835668) (2,817,743) (2,836,666)
(2,734,047) (2,776,465) (2,734,047) (2776465}
{260,451)  (375002)  ({163,037)  (392,149)
(774,661)  (557,530)  (443,276)  (405814)
- (20,689)  (521,942)  {305,490)
{321,470)  {288,395)  (321,470) (288,395}
(575.954)  (569,706) {638,462}  (569,706)
{140,638)  (282,722)  (140,688)  (164,572)
- (13,681} - {13,681)
- (413915) - -
{8,345) - - -
38,852  (642,067)  (408,469) 302,114
53,354 354,149 236,604 50,946
92,206  (287,918) (171,865} 353,060
- 506,791 - -
92,206 218,873 171,865 353,060
92,206 218,873  (171,865) 353,060
192,206 218,873 {171,865} 353,060
92,206 218,873  {171,865) 353,060
92,206 218,873  (171,865) 353,060
92,206 218,873  (171,865) 353,060

0.40 {2.90}

0.00 5.10

0.40 2.20

art of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION [3-;

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY g
AS AT 20 JUNE 2010 Notes 2010 2009 1.07.08 2010 2009 1.07.08 b
5 $ 5 $ 5 s

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 9 {67,388) 30,170 713 {67,666) 30,060 367

Trade and other receivables 10 519,319 543,412 554,490 1,199,309 543,412 558,586

Inventories 11 177,396 146,865 121,099 177,396 146,365 121,099

Other current assets i2 120,365 158,638 32,255 120,363 157,428 32,255

Total Current Assets 749,692 878,085 708,557 1,429,402 877,765 712,307

Non-Current Assets

Investments 13 - - 414,766 2 2 3

Investments accounted for using the .

equity method 14 807,655 - - - - -

Deferred tax assets 4 414,971 191,812 - 414,972 154,769 -

Praperty, plantand equipment 15 2,964,820 2,450,827 2352433 1,567,888 1098233 2352433

Total Non-Current Assets 4,187,446 2642639 2,767,199 1982862 1,253,004 2,352,436

Total Assets 4,937,138 3,521,724 3475756 3,412,263 2,130,769 3,064,743

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 16 781,375 1,214,596 1,500,678 789,380 846,629 1,498,994

interest bearing liabilities 17 1,080,942 1,118,237 1,684,462 495,224 1,118,236 1,684,462

Non-interest bearing liabilities 18 60,000 - 1,404,147 80,000 625,274 1,171,911

Shortterm provisions ig 225,056 341,880 241,430 225,056 341,880 241,430

Tatal Current Liabilities 2,147,373 2,674,713 4,830,717 1569660 2,832,01% 4,596,797

Non-Current Liabilities

Long term provisions 18 100,163 85,603 85,212 100,163 85,603 85,212

Interest hearing liabilities 17 880,482 2,298,232 1,101,407 239,457 688,697 1,101,407

Deferred tax liability 4 27,182 54,853 - 26,787 59,038 -

Total Non-Current Liabilities 1,007,828 2438694 1186619 366,407 833,338 1,186,619

Total Liabilities 3,155,201 5,113,407 6,017,336 1,936,067 3,765,357 5,783,416

Net Assets/(Lizbilities)

Equity

Issued capital 20 7,884,394 4,601,744 3,870,720 7,884,394 4,601,744 3,870,720
Accumulated josses {6,102,457) (6,193,427) (6,412,300} (6,408,198) (6,236,333} (6,589,393}
Total Equity 1,781,937 (1,591,683]) (2,541,580 1,476,196 {1,634,589) (2,718,673

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Consolidated Entity

Balance at 1 luly 2008
Prior year correction

Comgprehensive income for the year
Profit/{Loss} for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners recorded directly
in equity
Contributions by owners
Shares issued
Transaction costs
Total contributions by owners

Balance at 30 June 2010

Balance at 1 July 2008
Prior year correction

Comprehensive income for the year
Profit/(loss) for the year
Total compreheansive income for the year

Transactions with owners recorded directly
in equity
Contributions by owners
Shares issued
Transaction costs
Total contributions by owners

Balance at 30 June 2009

s M3 wym wm o D6 RN AR DK NN TN tme SEG S ED WS mm kA m

Equity
Component
of
Ordinary  Convertible Totallssued  Accumulated
Shares Notes Capital Losses Total
5 3 5 % $
4,187,679 414,065 4,601,744 {6,193,427) (1,591,683}
- - - {2,236) (1,238)
4,187,679 414065 4,601,744 {6,194,663) (1,592,919)
- - - 92,206 92,206
- - - 92,206 92,206
3,631,000 - 3,631,000 - 3,631,000
{348,350} - {348,350} - (348,350}
3,282,650 - 3,282,650 - 3,282,650
7,470,328 414,065 7,884,394 (6,102,457) 1,781,937
3,456,655 414,065 3,870,720 {6,412,300} (2,541,580)
3,456,655 414,065 3,870,720 (6,412,300} (2,541,580}
- - - 218,873 218 873
- - - 218,873 218,873
843,463 - 843,463 - 843,463
(112,439) - {112,439} (112,439)
731,024 - 731,024 - 731,024
4,187,679 414,065 4,601,744 (6,193,427} {1,591,683)

The atcompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CHANGES iN EQUITY {(continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010

Parent Entity

Balance at 1 july 2009
Prior year correction

Comprehensive income for the year
Profit/{Loss} for the year
Total comprehensive income for the year

Transactions with owners recorded directly
in equity
Contributions by owners
Shares issued
Transaction costs
Total contributions by owners

Balance at 30 June 2010

Balance at 1 july 2008
Prior year correction

Comprehensive income for the year
Prafit/{Loss) for the period
Total comprehensive income for the period

Transactions with owners recorded directly
in equity
Contributions by owners
Shares issued
Transaction costs
Total eontributions by owners

Balance at 30 June 2009

" The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.

Equity
Companent
of
Ordinary  Convertible Total Issued  Accumulated
Shares Notes Capital Losses Total
3 $ $ 5 $
4,187,679 414,065 4,601,744 (6,236,333} (i,634,5 89)
4,187,679 414,065 4,601,744 (6,236,333} (1,634!5 89}
- - {171,865} {171,8565)
- - - {171,865) (171,865)
3,631,000 - 3,631,000 - 3,631,000
(348,350) - {348,350) - (348,350)
3,282,650 - 3,282,650 - 3,282,650
7,470,329 414,065 7,884,394 {6,408,198) 1476,195
3,456,655 414,065 3,870,720 (6,589,333) (2,718,673)
3,456,655 414,065 3,870,720 {6,589,393) 2,718,673
- - 353,060 353,060
. - - 353,060 353,060
843,463 - 843,463 - 843,453
{112,439} - (112,439) - (112,439}
731,024 - 731,024 - 731,024
4,187,679 414,065 4,601,744 (6,236,333} {1,634 589
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

TR RN IR MO DT GO M W R L e

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2010 CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY

Notes 2010 2009 2010 2009

$ $ s $

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Receipts from customers 8,131,420 7,743,030 8,215,893 7,095,775
Payments to suppliers and employees (7,745,721)  {7,829,278) (8,038,647) (7,508,3 78)
Finance costs (173,161) {254,534) {75,747) (271,678)
Interest received 2,370 162 2,356 162
Net Cash Flow From/{Used in) Operating Activities 21{a) 214,908 {340,720) 103,855 (684,119)
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Proceeds from disposal of property, pfant and
eguipment 1,793 6,300 1,793 1,063,711
Purchase of property, plantand equipment {1,288,654) {708,076) {912,931} (175,150)
Payments for investment in associate {816,000) - - -
Proceeds from disposal of shares - 22,506 - -
Net Cash Flow (Used in}/From Investing Activities {2,102,861) (679,270} (911,138) 888,551
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from rights issue - 843,463 - 843,463
Proceeds from shareissue 3,631,000 - 3,631,000 -
Transaction costs (658,271) - (658,271) -
Payments for convertible notes paid out {500,000) {750,000} {500,000} (750,000}
Proceeds from borrowings 742,910 2,181,164 - 956,982
Repayment of borrowlngs {1,337,330)  (1,312,934) {1,675,259) {1,312,937)
Net Cash Flow From/{Used in) Financing Activities 1,878,309 961,693 797,470 (262 492)
Net {Decrease)/Increasein Cash and Cash
Equivalents (9,644) {58,297) {9,813) (58,060)
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year {103,728} (45,431} {103.837) (45,777}
€ash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year 21({b} 113,372 103,728 13,650 103,837

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 JUNE 20190

1. STATEMENT OF StGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements were authorised for issye by the Board of directors on 4 August 2010. The Board has the power to
amend or reissue the report after it has been issued.

{2) Basis of preparation

The financial report Is a general purpose financial report that has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards, Australian Accounting interpretations, other authoritative pronouncemerts of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board and the Corparations Act 2001.

The financial report includes the consolidated financial statements and notes of the consolidated entity of Print Mail Logistics
Limited and controlled entities, and the separate financial statements of Print Mai! Logistics Limited as an individual parent
entity. Print Mail Logistics Limited is a listed public company, incorporated and domiciled in Australia,

The financial report of Print Matl Logistics Limited and controlled entities, and Print Mail Logistics Limited as an individual
parent entity comply with all Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFRS) in their entirety.
Compliance with the Australian Accounting Standards ensures that the financial statements and notes also comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

The financial report of Print Mail Logistics Limited was authorised for issue by the board of directors on 4 August 2010. The
board has the power to amend or re-issue the repart after it has been issued.

The following is a summary of the material accounting policies adopted by the consolidated entity in the preparation of the
financial report. The accounting policies have been consistently applied, unless otherwise stated.

The financial report has been prepared on an accruals basis and is based on historical costs modified by the revaluation of
selected non-current assets, financial assets and financlal habilities for which the fair value basis of accounting applies. Cost is
based on the fair values of the consideration given in exchange for assets.

{b) Principles of Consolidation

A controlled entity is any entity controlled by Print Mall Logistics Limited. Control is considared to axist where Print Mail
Logistics Limited has the capacity to dominate the decision making in relation to the financial and operating policies of
another entity so that the other entity operates with Print Mail Logistics Limited to achieve tha objectives of Print Mail
Logistics Limited. The controfled entities have a June financial year end.

Where a controlled entity has entered or left the consolidated group during the year its operating results have been included
from the date control was obtained or until the date contral ceased. Details of the controlled entities are cantainad in Note
26. As at the reporting date, the assets and liabilities of all controlied entities have been incorporated into the consolidated
financial statements as well as their results for the vear then ended.

All inter-company balances and transactions between entities in the consolidated entity, including any unrealised profits or
losses, have been eliminated on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
30 JUNE 2010

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

{c) Business Combinations

Subsequent to 1 January 2009

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition methed. The consideration transferred in a business
combination shall be measured at fair value, which shall be calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the
assets transferred by the acquirer, the liabilities incurred by the acquirer to form owners of the acquire and the equity issued
by the acquirer, and the amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer
measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acguisition-related costs are expensed as incurrad.

When the consolidated entity acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabllities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic conditions, the consolidated entity’s
operating or accounting policies and ether pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embeadded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree,

i the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the acquirer's previously held equity
interest in the acquiree is remeasured at fair value as at the acquisition date through profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration which is deemed to be an asset or Tability will be
recognised In accordance ‘with AASB 139 elther in profit or loss or in other comprehenswe income. I the contingent
consideration is classified as equity, it shalf not be remeasured.

Prior to 1 January 2009

Business combinations were accounted for using the purchase method. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition formed part of the acquisition costs. The non-controlling interest {formerly known as minority interest) was
measured at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted for in separate steps. Any additional interest in the acquiree
acquired did not affect previously recognised goodwill. The goodwiii amounis calculated at each step acquisiion were
accumulated.

When the consolidated entity acquired a business, embedded derivatives separated from the host contract by the acquiree
were not reassessed on acquisition unless the business combination resulted in a change in the terms of the contract that
significantly modified the cash flows that otherwise would have been required under the contract.

Contingent consideration was recognised if, and only if, the consclidated entity had a present obligation, the economic

outFlow was more likely than not and a refiable estimate was determinable. Subsequent adjustments to the contingent
considaration were adjusted against goodwill,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
{(d) Taxes

Income toxes

The charge for current income tax expense is based on the profit or loss for the year adjusted for any non-assessable or
disallowed iterms. It is calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted or are substantially enacted by the balance sheet
date.

Deferrad tax assets and liabilities are ascertained based on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
habilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. No deferred income tax will be recognised from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability, excluding a business combination, where there is no effect on accounting or taxable profit
or loss,

peferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or liability is settled. Deferred tax is credited in the Statement of Comprehensive Income except where it relates to
items that may be credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is adjusted directly against equity.

Deferred income tax assets afe recognised to the extent that it is probable that future tax profits will be available against
which deductible tempaorary differences can be utilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or which may be realised in the future is based on the assumption that no
adverse change will occur in income taxation legislation and the anticipation that the cansolidated entity will derive sufficient

future assessable income to enable the benefit to be realised and comply with the conditions of deductibility imposed by the
law.

Print Mail Logistics Limited and its wholly owned Australian subsidiaries formed an income tax consolidated group under the
tax consolidation regime on 1 July 2006, Each entity in the tax consolldated group recagnises its own current and deferred
tax liabilities, except for any deferred tax liabilities resuiting from unused tax losses and tax credits, which are immediately
assumed by the parent entity. The current tax liability of each tax consolidated group entity is then subsequently assumed by
the parent entity.

Goods and services tax (GST)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except:
- where the G5T incurred on a purchase of goods and services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which
case the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of expense; and

- receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation autherity is included as part of receivables or payables
in the Statement of Financial Performance.

Cash flows are included in the Statement of Cash Flows on a gross basis except for the GST component of the cash flows
arising from investing and financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority, which are
disclosed as operating cash flows.

Commitrnents and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
authority.

wae 27

=
=]
<
o
i-1)
(=3
o
N
i~
&
8
E
T
S
=
£
%




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

1, STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
{e) Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Costs incurred In bringing Inventory to its present location and condition, are accounted for as purchase costs on a first-in-
first-out basis.

{f) Property, plant and eguipment

fach class of property, plant and equipment is carried at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed on an annual basis by the directors to ensure that the value is not in
excess of the recoverable amaount of these assets, The recoverable amount is assessed by reference to the expected net cash
flows that will be received from the asset’s employmant and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have been
discounted to their present value In determining recoverable amounts.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s catrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriste, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the consolidated entity and the cost of the
itern can be measured reliably.

Repairs and maintenance costs are expensed to the statement of comprehensive income during the financial peried in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation
The depreciable amount of all fixed assets is depreciated on a straight-line basis over their useful lives to the consolidated
entity commencing from the time the asset is held ready for use. Leasehold improvements are depreclated overthe shorter

of either the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful lives of the improvements.

Major depreciation periods are:

Plant and equipment
Computers 3 years
Motor vehicles 3years
Digital printing equipment 5 years
Mail insertion equipment 5 years
Finishing and bindery equipment S years
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Offset printing equipment 12 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount Is greater
than its estimated recaverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing the proceeds received from the disposal to the carrying amount of
gach respective asset. These gains and losses are included in the statement of comprehensive income. When revalued assets
are sold, amounts included in the revaluation reserve relating to that asset are transferred to retained earnings.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010
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1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
{g} Leases

Leases of fixed assets, where substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to the cwnership of the asset, but not the legal
ownership, are transferred to entities within the consolidated entity are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are
capitalised by recording an asset and a liability equal to the present valie of the minimum lease payments, including any
guaranteed residual values.

Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives where it is likely that the consolidated
entity wii obtain ownership of the asset or over the term of the lease. Lease payments are allocated between the reduction
of the lease liability and the lease Interest expense for the period.

{ease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remain with the fessor, are charged as
expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.

{h} Financial instruments
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial instruments, incorporating financial assets and financial liabilities, are recognised when the entity becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Trade date accounting is adopted for financial assets that are delivered
within timeframes established by market placed convention.

financial instruments are Initially measured at fair value plus transaction costs where the instrument is not classified as at fair
value through the profit or loss. Transaction costs related to instruments classified as at fair value through profitand loss are
expensed to the Statement of Comprehensive Income immediately. Financial instruments are classified and measured as set
out below:

- Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised where the contractual rights to the receipt of cash flows expires or the asset is transferred
to another party whereby the entity no longer has any significant continuing involvement in the risks and benefits associated
with the asset. Financial liahilities are derecognised where the related obligations are either discharged, cancelled or expire.
The difference between the carrying value of the financial fiability extinguished or transferred to another party and the fair
value of consideration paid, including the transfer of non-cash assets or liabilities assumed is recognised in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

- Classification and subsequent measuremerit
{i} Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market and are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

{ii}  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A financial asset is classified in this category if acquired princlpally for the purpose of selling in the short term ar if so
designated by management and within the requirements of AASB 139%: Recognition and Measurement of Financial
instruments. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading uniess they are designated as hedges. Realised and
unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of these assets are iacluded in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income in the period in which they arise. Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets in this category
are measured at cost when they are Investments in egquity instruments that do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannat be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
{h} Financial instruments {continued)
{iii) Financiaf ligbilities

Non-derivative financial labilities are subsequently measured at amoartised cost, comprising original debt less principal
payments and amortisation.

{iv) Impairment

At each reporting date, the consolidated entity assesses whether there is objective evidence that a financial instrument has
been Impaired. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

(i) impairment of assets
At each reporting date, the consolidated entity reviews the carrying values of its assets to determine whether there is any
Indication that those assets have been impaired. if such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset, being the

higher of the asset's fair value less cost incurred to sell and value in use, is compared to the asset’s carrying value. Any excess
of the asset’s carrying value over its racoverable amourt is expensed to the statement of comprehensive income.

Impairment testing is performed annually.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the consolidated entity estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs.

(i) Foreign currency transactions and balances

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each of the entities in the consclidated group is measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which that entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian
dollars which is the parent entity’s functional and presentation currency.

Transaction and balances

Forelgn currency transactions are translated into foreign currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency monetary items are translated at the year-end exchange rate. Non-monetary items measured

at fair value are reported at the exchange rate at the date when fair values were determined.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of monetary items are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income,
except where deferred in equity as a qualifying cash flow or net investment hedge.

Exchange differences arising on the translation of non-monetary Items are recognised directly in equity to the extent that the
gain or loss is directly recognised in equity; otherwise the exchange difference is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)

30 JUNE 2010
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1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
{k} Employee benafits

Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a result of employees rendering services up to the reporting date.
These benefits inciude wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave.

Employee benefits expected to be settled within twelve months of the reporting date are measured at their nominal
amounts based on remuneration rates which are expected to be paid when the llability is settled. This is inclusive of
associated on-costs of 16.5%. Employee benefits payable later than one year have been measured at the present value of the
estimated cash flows to be made for those benefits.

Employee benefits expenses and revenues arising in respect of wages and salaries, non-monetary benefits, annual leave and
other types of employee benefits are recognised against profits on a net basis in their respective categories.

(1) Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the consolidated entity has a fegal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, for
which it fs probable that an outflow of economic benefits will result and that outflow can be reliably measured.

{m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at cali with banks, other short tarm highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short term
borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Performance.

Cash on hand and in banks and short term deposits are stated at nominal value.

For the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash includes cash on hand and in hanks including bank overdrafts.

{n} Revenue recognition

Revenue Is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Amounts disclosed are net of returns,
trade allowances and rebates.

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity and the revenue can
be reliably measured.

Revenue from printing and mailing services rendered is recognised upon defivery to the customer or on account of the
customer.

Dividend Revenue Is recognised when received.

Interest revenue is recognised as it accrues taking into account the effective yiald on the financial asset.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of G5T.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES [continued}
{o} Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income period in which they are incurred.

{#) Comparative figures

When required by accounting standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes in presentation for
the current financial year.

Reciassification

There has been a reclassification in the comparatives of the profit from discontinued operations to correctly reflect the split
betwaen continuing and discontinuing operatians, This bas had no impact on the profit for the year.

Material Prior Period Error
Subsequent to 31 December 2009, a matertal ercar in the prior period financial statements relevant to the accounting
treatment of a campound financial instrument in accordance with AASB 132 was identified. In accordance with AASB 108

paragraph 42, the material prior period error has been corrected retrospectively in the first financial report authorised for
{ssue after the discovery by restating the comparative amounts for the prior period(s) presented in which the error occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2020

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)

{p) Comparative figures {continued}

The amount of the correction for each financial statement line item affacted and basic and diluted earnings per share is

outlined below:

Consalidated Entity 30 June 2009
Previously Correction Restated
Stated
5 $ $
Revenuye from continuing operations
Finance costs {254,531) {120,471) {375,002)
Profit/ (Loss) for the year 339,344 {120,471} 218,873
Current Liabilitles
Interest bearing liabilities 1,091,999 26,238 1,118,237
Total Current Liabilities 2,648,475 26,238 2,674,713
Non-current Liabilites
tnterest bearingliabilities 2,129,603 168,629 2,298,232
Total Non-Current Lisbilities 2,270,065 168,629 2,438,694
Total Liahilities 4,918,540 194,867 5,113,407
Net Assets {1,396,816) {194,867) {1,591,683)
Issued capital 4,531,138 70,605 4,601,744
Accumulated losses (5,927,955} {265,472) {6,193,427)
Total Equity {1,396,816) (184,867) (1,591,683}
Basic and Dilutive Earnings Per Share 0.03 (0.01) 0.02
1 July 2008
Previously Correction Restated
stated
5 $ $
Revenue from tontinuing operations
finance costs {296,599) {145,001) {441,700)
Profit/{Loss)} for the year 160,970 {145,001) 15,969
Current Liabillties
Interest bearing liabilities 1,683,031 1,431 1,684,462
Total Current Liabilities 4,829,286 1,431 4,830,717
Non-current Liabilites
Interest bearing liabilities 906,557 194,850 1,101,407
Totat Non-Current Liabilities 991,769 194,850 1,186,619
Total Liabilities 5.821,055 196,281 6,017,336
Net Assets {2,345,299) {196,281) {2,541,580)
Issued capital 3,922,000 (51,280} 3,870,720
Accumulated losses (6,267,299} (145,001} {56,412,300}
Total Equity {2,345,299) (196,281) (2,541,580}
Basic and Dilutive Earnings Per Share 0.06 {0.06} 0.00
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued}

{p) Comparative figures {continued)

Parent Entity

Revenue from continuing operations
Finance costs
profit/{Loss} for the year

Current Liabilities
Interest bearing fiabillties
Total Current Liabilities

Non-gurrent Liabilites
Interest bearing liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities
Net Assets

Issued capital
Accumulated losses
Total Equity

Revenue from continuing operations
Finance costs
Profit/ (Loss) for the year

Current Lisbilities
interestbhearing liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Non-current Liabilites
interest bearing tiabilitles
Total Non-Current Liahilitfes

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Issued capital
Accumulated losses
Total Equity

Previously
Stated
$

(271,678}
473,531

1,091,598
2,905,781

520,068
664,709

3,570,491
(1,438,722}

4,531,539
(5,970,861}
{1,439,722}

Previously

$

{292,560)
(122,368)

1,683,032
4,595,366

906,557
991,769

5,587,135
[2,522,392)

3,922,000
(6,444,392}
(2,522,392}
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30 June 2005

Correction
$

{120,471)
(120,471)

26,238
26,238

168,629
168,629

194,867
{194,867)

70,605
{265,472}
{194,867}

1 July 2008
Correction

$

(145,001}
{145,001)

1,431
1,431

194,850
194,350

196,281
(196,281)

(51,280}
(145,001)
(196,281)

Restated
$

{392,149)
353,060

1,118,236
2,932,019

688,697
833,338

3,765,357
{1,634,589)

4,601,744
{6,236,323)
{1,634,589)

Restated
$

(437,561)
(267,369)

1,634,462
4,596,797

1,101,407
1,186,619

5,783,416
(2,718,673)

3,870,720
{6,589,393)
{2,718,673)




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010
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1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
{q) Debt defeasance
Where assets are given up to extinguish the principal repayments and all future interest payments of a debt, any differences

in the carrying value foregone and the liability extinguished is brought to account in profit. Costs incurred in establishing the
defeasance are expensed in the period that the defeasance occurs.

in all cases where defeasance aceurs, it is highly unlikely that the consolidated entlty will again be required to pay any part of
the debt or meet any guarantees or indemnities associated with the debt.

{r} Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The diractars evaluate estimates and judgements incorporated into the financial report based on historical knowledge and
best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future events and are based on current
trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the group.

Going Concern

As at 30 June 2010, the consolidated entity had a deficiency in working capital {net current assets) of $ 1,397,681 {2009:
$1,795,628).

The directors consider that the going concern assumption adopted in the preparation of the financial report is appropriate
and that the consolidated entity has the resources avatlabie for the repayment of its financial liabilities as and when they fall
due.

The golng concern assumption is based on the consolidated entity being able to:
- rnaintain the ratio of trade debtor settlements to trade creditor settlements which existed at balance date;
- maintain the revenue level which existed at balance date;
- maintain finance facilities on similar terms and conditions to those which existed at batance date;
- extend the maturity date of a $200,000 debt obligation which falls due on 31 December 2010; and
. maintain a balance of surplus working capital to fund the repayment of the convertible notes as and when they
mature, or source alternative funding for this purpose.

The directars will continue to evaluate and, to the extent necessary, adjust its strategies to meet the working capital
requirements of the consolidated entity as circumstances develop-

Key estimates — Impairment
The consolidated entity assesses impairment at each reporting date by evaluating conditions specific to the consolidated

entity that may lead to impairment of assets. Where an impairment trigger exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
determined. Value-in-use calculations performed in assessing recoverable amounts Incorporate a number of key estimates.

pane 35




i epd 82 mm T luw £ND TUA NE BES BN G NG M GEN M i NS A WS DI WM BB e R I

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {(continued)

30 JUNE 2010

1, STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(s) Determination of fair values

Fair values have been determined for measurement andfor disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When
applicable, further information about the assumptions made in determining fair values is disclosed in the notes specific to
that asset or liability.

Praperty, plant and equipment

The fair value of property, plant and equipment recognised as a result of a business combination is based on market values.
The market value of property is the estimated amount for which a property could be exchanged on the date of valuation
between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had
each acted knowledgeably, and willingly. The market value of items of plant, equipment, fixtures and fittings is based on the
market approach and cost appreaches using quoted market prices for similar items when available and replacement cost
when appropriate,

{t} New accounting standards and interpretations

The consolidated entity has adopted the following new and amended Australian Accounting Standards and AASB
interpretations as of 1 January 2009.

AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (revised 2008) effective 1 January 2009

AASA 8 Operating Segments effective 1 January 2009

AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements {revised 2007) effective 1 lanuary 2009

AASB 123 Borrowing Costs frevised 2007) effective 1 January 2009

AASB 2008-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Cost of an Investment in o Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled
Entity or Assaciate effective 1 lanuary 2009
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1. STATEMENT QOF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {cantinued)
[t} New accounting standards and Interpretations {continued)

When the adoption of the Standard or Interpretation Is deemed to have an impact on the financial statements or
performance of the consolidated entity, its impact is described below:

AASB 127 Consolldated and Separate Financial Statements (revised 2008}

AASB 127 (revised 2008) requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary {without a change in control) is to be
accounted for as a transaction with owners in their capacity as owners. Therefore such transactions will no onger give rise
to goodwill, nor witl they give rise to a gain or loss in the statement of comprehensive income. Furthermore the revised
standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by a partially owned subsidiary as well as the [oss of control of a
subsidiary. The changes in AASB 3 {revised 2008) and AASE 127 {revised 2008) will affect future acquisitions, changes in, and
Ioss of controt of, subsidiaries and transactions with non-controlling interests,

The change In accounting policy was applied prospectively and had no material impact on earnings per share,

AASB 8 Operating Segments

AASB 8 replaced AASB 114 Segment Reporting upon its effective date. The consolidated entity concluded that the operating
segments determined in accordance with AASB 8 are the same as the business segments previously identified under AASB
114. AASE 8 disclosures are shown in Note 28, including the related revised comparative information.

AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements {revised 2007}

The revised Standard separates owner and non-swner changes in equity. The statement of changes in equity includes only
details of transactions with owners, with non-owner changes in equity presented in a reconciliation of each compenent of
equity and included in the new statement of comprehensive income. The statement of comprehensive income presents all
items of recognised income and expense, either in one single statement, or in two linked statements. The consolidated
entity has elected to present one statement. As a result of the adoption of the revised standard, the naming conventions of
the primary staternents have been renamed.

AASB 123 Borrowing Costs

The revised AASB 123 requires capitalisation of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset. The consolidated entity’s previous policy was to expense borrowing costs as they were
incurred. In accordance with the transitional provisions of the amended AASB 123, the consolidated entity has adopted the
Standard on a prospective basis. Therefare, borrowing costs are capitalised on qualifying assets with a commencement date
on or after 1 January 2008. The consclidated entity did not capitalise any borrowing costs in the current year.

AASB 2008-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Cost of an Investment in a Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled

Entity or Associate

The amendments deiete the reference to the “cost method” making the distinction between pre and post acquisition profits
no longer relevant. All dividends received are now recognised in profit or loss rather than having to ke spiit hetween a
reduction in the investment and profit and foss. However the receipt of such dividends requires an entity to consider
whether there is an indicator of Impalrment of the investment in that subsidiary.

The amendments further clarify cases or reorganisations where a new parent is inserted above an existing parent of the
consolidated entity. It states that the cost of the subsidiary is the previous carrying amount of its share of equity ittems in the
subsidiary rather than its fair value. The adoption of these amendments did not have any impact an the financial position or
the performance of the consolidated entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010
1. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
{u} New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The following standards, amendments o standards and interpretations have been identified as those which may impact the
entity in the period of initial application. They are available for early adoption at 30 June 2010, but have not been applied in
preparing this financial report.

AASB 9 Financial Instruments includes requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets resutting from
the first part of Phase 1 of the project to replace AASB 138 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement, AASB 9 will
becorme rmandatory for the consolidated entity’s 30 June 2014 financial statements. Retrospective application is generally
required, although there are exceptions, particularly if the entity adopts the standard for the year ended 30 lune 2012 or
earlier. The consolidated entity has not yet determined the potential effect of the standard.

AASB 124 Reloted Party Disclosures (revised December 2009) simplifies and clarifies the intendad meaning of the definition
of a related party and provides a partial exemption from the disclosure requirements for government-related entities. The
amendments, which wili become mandatory for conselidated entity’s 30 June 2012 financial statements, are not expected to
have any impact on the financial statements.

AASE 2009-5 Further gmendments to Austrafian Accounting Standards arising from the Annual Improvements Process affect
various AASBs resulting in minor changes for presentation, disclosure, recognition and measurement purposes. The
amendments, which become mandatory for the cansolidated entity’s 30 june 2011 financial statements, are not expected to
have a significant impact on the financial statements.

AASB 2009-8 Amendments to Australion Accounting Standards — Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions
resolves diversity in practice regarding the atiribution of cash-settled share-based payments between different entities
within a group. As a result of the amendments A} 8 Scope of AASB 2 and Al 11 AASE 2 ~ Group ond Treasury Share
Transactions wili be withdrawn from the application date. The amendments, which become mandatory for the consglidated
entity’s 30 June 2011 financial statements, are not expected to have a significant impact on the financial statements.

AASB 2009-10 Amendments to Australion Accounting Standards — Classification of Rights Issue [AASB 132] (October 2010}
clarify that rights, options or warrants to acquire a fixed number of an entity’s own equity instruments for a fixed amount in
any currency are equity instruments if the entity offers the rights, options or warrants pro-rata {0 all existing owners of the
same class of its own non-derivative equity instruments. The amendments, which will become mandatory for the
consalidated entity’s 30 June 2011 financial statements, are not expected to have any impact on the financial statements.

AASB 2009-14 Amendments to Australian Interpretation — Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Requirement — AASB 14 make
amendments to Interpretation 14 AASB 119 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements
removing an unintended conseguence arising from the treatment of the prepayments of future contributions in some
circumstances when there is a minimum funding requirement. The amendmenis will become mandatory for the
consolidated entity’s 30 June 2012 financial statements, with retrospective application required. The amendments are not
expected to have any impact.

IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Finoncial Liabifities with Equity Instruments addresses the accounting by an entity when the terms of a
financial liability are renegotiated and result in the entity issuing equity instruments to a creditor of the entity to extinguish
all or part of the financial liabifity, IFRIC 19 will become mandatory for the consolidated entity’s 30 June 2011 financial
statemants, with retrospective application required. The consolidated entity has not yet determined the potentiat effect of
the interpretation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

2. REVENUE FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

Revenues from operating activities
Revenue from rendering of services

Revenues from non-operating activities
Interest received

Dividends received

Proceeds on disposal of property, plantand
equipment

Less: carrying vaiue

Gain on disposal

tain on forgiveness of loan

Gain on foreign currency translation

Qther income

Total revenues from non-operating activities

Total revenues from ordinary activities

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
2010 2009 2010 2009
$ s $ s
7,362,465 6,211,313 7,362 465 6,835,300
2,370 152 2,356 162
- 467,833 - -
1,783 101,300 1,793 1,158,713
- - - {971,397}
1,793 101,300 1,793 187,315
300,000 659,762 - 303,643
59,164 - 59,164 -
25,465 43,100 25,465 54,398
388,791 1,266,157 88,777 1145518
7,751,256 7,477,470 7,451,242 8,080,818
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

3. PROFIT/{LOSS5) BEFORE INCOME TAX

Profit/{Loss) before income tax includes the following expenses:

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
2010 2008 2014 2009
5 s ) s
Fingnce egsis
Interest expense —external parties 241,376 263,338 145,022 190,514
interest expense —related entities 3,110 90,401 3,110 180,864
Other borrowing costs 15,965 21,263 14,905 20,771
Total finance costs 260,451 375,002 163,037 392,149
Depreciati rtisation
Property, plantand equipment 774,661 557,530 443,276 405,814
Tota! depreciation of non-currentassets 774,661 557,530 443,276 405,814
Operafingleases
Minimum lease payments - plantand equipment - 29,689 521,942 05,490
Minimum lease payments - premises 237,638 209,425 237,638 209,425
Total operating lease rental 237,638 239,114 759,580 514,315
Bad and doubtful debts
Trada receivables impaired 3,382 16,768 3,382 (15,708}
Total bad and doubtful debts 3,382 16,768 3,382 (15,708)
ott ignifl
Superannuation expense 213,418 198,853 213,418 198,853
Total other significant expenses 213,418 148 853 213,418 198 853
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010
4. INCOME TAX

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY

2010 2009 2010 2009
$ ] $ s

Current
The major components of Income tax expense are:
Current {ax expense - - 44,785

Deferred tax expense / {benefit) {53,354} {354,149} {236,604} {95,731)

(53,354} (354,349) (236604) {50,946)

Recanciliation of income tax expense to prima focie
tox payable
Accounting profit/{loss} from continuing

. . 38,852 (642,067) {408,469) 302,114
operations before income tax

Prima facie tax at statutory income tax rate of 30% 11,656 (192,620} {122,541}) 90,634
Non deductible expenditure 7,436 101,992 9,197 93,175
Other deductible expendiiure (117,681} {48,958) (117,681) {996)
Origination/(reversal) of other temporary . (61,302} _ (46,062)
differences

Franking credits received - 34,436 - -
Derecognition of deferred tax assets 45,235 - {5,579} -
Recoupment of prior year losses not previously ) (187.697) R (187,697)
brought to account ’ !
Income tax expensef{benefit) _§3,354) {354,149} {236,604} {50,946)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

4, INCOME TAX {continued)

Opening Brought to Charged to Charged to Closing
Balance Account Income Equity Balance
Statemert
5 $ s $ $
Non-Current
Consolidated Entity
Deferred tax labliity
Property, plant and equipment 54,859 - {27,677) - 27,182
54,859 - {27,677) - 27,182
Deferred tax asset
Provision for doubtful debts 20,506 - (19,390} - 1,116
Employee provisions 95,641 - 1,925 - 97,566
Creditors and accruals 55,389 - {38,421) - 16,968
Other items 3,740 - {3,740) - -
Transaction costs - - (46,243) 197,481 151,239
Tax losses 16,536 - 131,546 - 148,082
191,812 - 25,677 %97,481 414,971
Non-Current
Parent Entity
Deferred tax liability
Property, plant and equipment 59,038 - (32,251} - 26,787
59,038 - (3}2,_251) - 26,787
Deferred tax asset
Provision for doubtful debts - - 1,116 - 1,116
Employee provisions 95,641 - 1,925 - 87,566
Creditors and accruals 55,389 - (38,421} - 16,968
QOther items 3,740 - (3,740) - -
Transaction costs - - {46,243) 197,481 151,239
Tax losses™ - {141,631} 289,714 - 148,083
J:I‘.54,TJ'0 (141,631) 204&5_1 197,481 41459 72

*Deferred tax benefit in respect of tax losses recognised in respect of the tax consolidated group.

EEE SES NN B EEm ess A W WAE

page A2




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2016
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5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY
2010 2009
$ $

On 18 June 2009 the parent entity sold its 100% ownership interest in 88888883
Pty Ltd to Mr Elias. Mr Elias is s director of the parent entity and, at the time of
the disposal, was the sole director of 83888888 Pty Lid.
Financial information relating to the discontinued operation to the date of
disposal is setout below.
The financial performance of the discontinued operation to the date of sale which
is inctuded in the profit/{loss) from discontinued operations per the statement of
comprehensive income is as follows:
Revenue - 1,212,058
Expenses - {488,071)
Profit before income tax - 723,987
Income tax {expense)/benefit - (217,156)
Profit attributable to owners of the parent entity - 506,791
Profit on sale before income tax - -
Income tax (expensej/benefit - -
Profit/(foss) on sale after income tax - -
Total profit on sale after tax attributable to the discontinued operation - -
Earnings per share
From discontinued operations:

Basic and Diluted earnings per share (cents) 0.00 5.10

The discontinued operations do not fall into any specific operating segment and for the purpose of AASB 8 Operating
Segmenis is notallocated to an operating segment.

The net cash flows of the discontinuing division which have been incorporated
into the statement of cash Hlows are as follows;

Net cash inflow/{outflow} from operating activities: - (22,467)
Net cash inflow/{outflow} from Investing activities: - 22,447
Net cash (outflow)finfiow from financing activities: : - -
Net cash increase/{decrease} in cash generated by the discontinuing division . (z0)

Gain on disposal of the division Included in gain from discontinued operations per
the statement of comprehensive income .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

6. INTERESTS OF KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (KWVP)

The total remuneration pald to KMP of the parent entity and the consolidated entity during the year was as follows:

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
2010 2009 2010 2009

$ $ $ $
Short term employee benefits 467,269 513,177 467,269 513,177
Post employment benefits 40,374 43,328 40,374 43,326
Other fong term benefits - - - -
Share based payments - - - -
Termination benefits - - - -
507,643 556,503 507,643 556,503

Key Management Personnel include:
Nigel B Elias (Managing Director}
lohn W Woods (Non-executive Director - appointed 1/06/2009)
Robert C Cameron (Nan-executive Director - appointed 1/04/2010)
Robert K Stewart {Non-executive Director - appointed 7/06/2007, resigned 11/03/2010)

william K Pownie (Non-executive Director- appainted 11/03/2010, resigned 1/04/2010)
Peter A Macleod (General Manager}

Adrian ] Pereira (Chief Financiai Officer)

7. DIVIDENDS PAID OR PROVIDED FOR ON ORDINARY SHARES

There were no dividends paid or provided as at the reporting date (2005: nil).

The parent entity’s franking account balance is $114,785 (2009: 5 16,563).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

8. EARNINGS PER SHARE {EPS)

Recondliation of earnings to profit or loss
Profit/iLoss) after income tax {expense}/ benefit
Earnings used to calculate basic EPS

Earnings used in the calculation of dilutive EPS

Recondliation of earnings to profit or loss from
continuing operations

Profit/{Less) from continuing operations
Earnings used to calculate basic EPS from
continuing operations

Effect of ditutive shares/options

Farnings used in the calculation of dilutive EPS
from continuing operations

Recanciliation of earnings to profit or loss from
discontinuing operations

Profitf{loss) from discontinuing operations
£arnings used to calculate basic EPS from
discontinuing eperations

Effect of ditutive shares/options

Earnings used in the calculation of dilutive EPS
from discontinuing aperations

Woeighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the year used in calculating
hasic and dilutive EPS

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
2010 2009 2010 2000
3 s $ $
92,206 218,873 (171,865) 353,060
92,206 218,873 (171,865) 353,060
92,206 218,373 (171,865) 353,060
92,206  {287918) (171,865 353,060
92,206  {287919)  (171,865) 353,060
52,206  (287,91%)  (171,365) 353,060
- 506,791 R -
. 506,791 . .
- 506,791 . -
23,157,836 9,935,408 23,157,836 9935408
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

9. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
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CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENTENTITY
Notes 2010 2009 2010 2009
5 $ 5 $

Cash atbank and in hand i) (67,388} 30,170 {67,666} 30,060
Reconciliation of Cash
(ash at the end of the financial year as shown in
the statement of cash flows is reconciled to items
in the statement of financial position as follows;
Cash and cash eqguivalents 191,612 30,170 191,334 30,060
Less Unpresented Cheques {259,000) - {259,000} -
Bank overdraftfacility {45,984) {133 898) {45,984} (133,898)

{113,372) {103,728)

{113,650} {103,838)

(i} The parent entity's actual cash at bank as at 30 June was $191,333.79 {economic entity: $191,612.09). The reporting
figure has been adjusted to recognise two unpresented cheques: the repayment of a Convertible Note that matured on 30

June 2010 and a payment to a trade creditor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

10. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
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CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
Notes 2010 2009 2010 2009
s $ $ 5
Current
Trade receivables (i} 518,866 438,912 518,966 438,912
Provision for impairment of receivables {3,720} - {3,720} -
515,246 438,912 515,246 438,912
Non-trade debtors 4,073 172,856 4,073 104,500
Provision for impairment of receivables - (68,356} - -
4,073 104,500 4,073 104,500
Loan - wholly owned subsidiary - 999999999 Pty
Lid - - 634,345 -
Loan - wholly owned subsidiary - B66666 Pty Ltd - - 44,718 -
Loan - wholly owned subsidiary - Print Mall - - 927 -
Logistics (International) Pty Lid
- - £79,990 -
Total current trade and other receivahbles 513,313 543,412 1,199,309 543,412

Terms and conditions refating to the above financial instruments:
(i} Trade debtors are non-interest bearing and generally on 21 day trade terms.

page 47




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

11. INVENTORIES

Current
Work in progress - at cost
Finished goods - at cost

12. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepayments
Deposits with suppliers
GST Refund

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
2014 2009 2010 2009
5 5 5 $
6,997 12,314 6,997 12,314
170,399 134,551 170,399 134,551
177,396 146,865 177,396 146,865
CONSOLIDATED ENTHY PARENT ENTITY
2010 2009 2010 2009
5 5 $ $
46,323 23,639 46,322 23,639
74,041 133,789 74,041 133,789
- 1,210 - -
120,364 158,638 120,363 157,428
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

36 JUNE 2010

13. INVESTMENTS

Notes 2010

investments include:
Unkisted investments at cost:

Shares in controlled entities (i) -

annual report 2009-2010

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
2009 2010 2009
$ $ $ §
2 2
- 2 2

{t) Shares in controlled entities comprise investments in the ordinary issued capital of 999999989 Pty ltd and 666666
Pty Ltd. These shares are nottraded publicly and therefore there is no reliable basis to determine fair value.

14. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE EQUITY METHOD

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY
Notes 2010 2009
$ 5
Assoclated companies {t; 807,655

PARENT ENTITY
2010 2009
$ 5

807,655

{i) The investment in the associated company was acquired by 999959999 Pty Ltd on 31 Qctober 2009. Theassociated -
company's assets total 53,024,072, and its liabilities total 52,692,184, Its revenues for the financial year total

$111,673 and its Loss for the financial year after tax totals $27,816.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

CONSOQLIBATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
Notes 2010 2009 2010 2009
$ 5 5 3
Property, plantand equipment
At cost {i} 5,620,708 4,110,309 4,265,624 3,352,693
Less: accumulated depreciation and impairment {i) {2,655,889} (1,659,482) {2,697,736) (2,254,460}
Total property, plant and equipment 2,964,820 2,450,827 1,567,828 1!{}58,2 33

{i) The 2009 plant and equipment - at cost has been restated by increasing that amount by $221,744. The 2008 plant
and equipment - accumulated depreciation and impalrment has been restated by increasing that amount by $221,744.
The restatement is to correct a prior period mis-allocation between cost and accumulated depreciation and
impairment. The net effect on the carrying value of property, plantand equipment is nif.

{a) Assets pledged as security

Each of the three remaining Converiible Notes on issue to L5SL Holdings Pty Ltd (in Uguidation) ("LSL"} includea fixed and
floating charge over the parent entity. Australia and New Zealand Banking Group limited holds a fixed and floating
charge over the parent entity that ranks after the charges issued in the favour of ISL

The hire purchase agresment with National Australia Bank limited is secured by a fixed and floating charge over
666666 Pty Lid. The hire purchase agreement with Fuji-Xerox Australia Pty Ltd, whilst unsecured, includes a retention of
title over the equipment financed pursuant to the hire purchase agreement.

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
Plant & Equipment Plant & Equipment
Balance at the heginning of the year 2,450,827 2,352,433 1,098,233 2352433
Add Additions 1,288,654 655,924 912,931 123,011
Less Written down value of disposals - - - {971,397}
Less Depreciation (774,661) {557,530} (443,276) {405,814}
Carrying amount at the end of the year 2,964,820 2,450,827 1,567,888 1,098,223
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

16. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENTENTITY
Notes 2010 2009 2010 2009
$ $ $ L
Current
Trade creditors {i) 444,559 769,635 437,402 385,087
Accrued expenses 16,317 1,651 - 1,651
Australia Post - credit facility (i1 48,308 31,070 48,308 31,070
Goods and services tax 136,242 145,582 125,937 121,168
PAYG withholding tax 47,830 158,642 46,830 155,852
Qther provisions - - 44,785 44,735
Fringe benefits tax 2,873 9,416 2,973 2,416
Superannuation 56,559 66,531 56,559 66,531
Insurance 26,586 31,069 26,586 31,069
781,375 1,214,596 789,380 846,629

Terms and conditions relating to the above financial instruments;

() Trade creditors are non-interest bearing and payable generally on 30 day terms.

{#i} The Australia Post credit facility is non-interest bearing. The maximum dzily credit balance is $55,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

17. INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
Notes 2010 2009 2010 2009

$ 5 S s
Current
Unsecured liabilities
Loans - other parties - 571,629 - 571,629
Hire purchase agreements (i) 275,847 - - -

275,847 571,629 - 571,629
Secured liabilities
Loans - other parties fii) 200,000 - - -
Convertible Notes (iii} 449,240 412,710 443,240 412,710
Hire purchase agreements 3] 109,871 - - -
Bank overdraft facility fiv} 45984 133,898 45,984 133,898

805@95 546,603 495,224 546,608
Total Current 1,080,942 1,118,237 495,224 1,118!236
Non-current
Unsecured liabilities
Hire purchase agreements {i) 467,062 - - -

467,062 “ - -
Secured liabilities
Loans - other parties - 1,609,535 - -
Convertible Notes {iFl} 239,457 688,697 239,457 688,697
Hire purchase agreements {H) 173962 - - -

413,419 2.2'38,232.L 239,457 688,697
Total Non-current 830,482 2,208 232 239,457 688,649=7_

Terms and conditions relating to the above financial instruments;

{i) The hire purchase agreements represent one secured and one unsecured to 666666 Pty Ltd. Both agreements are for
a 36 month period and contain a fixed rate of interest over the life of the loan, repayable in monthly instalments of
$33,773.08 inclusive of interast.

(ii} The secured - other party loan represents $200,000 to 999999939 Pty td. The loan bears interest at therate of 9%
per annum with the maturity date being 31 December 2010. The laan is secured by a registered fixed and floating char ge
over the assets and undertaking of the borrower.

{iii) The three remaining Convertible Notes each have a face value of $250,000 and bear interest at 1% per annum
payable six monthly in arrears. The Notes mature in December 2010, June 2011 and December 2011. The Notes may, at
the option of the Note holder be converted into shares of the parent entity at 52 per share. One of the parent entity's
directors, Mr Elias, has been granted an option by the Note holder to acquire any or all of the Notes at any time prior to
their maturity. The Notes have been discounted to present value in accordance with AASB 132 - Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

{iv} The bank overdraft facility bears interest at a variable rate calculated on the daily debit balance. The overdraft
limit is $150,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

18. NON-INTEREST BEARING LIABILITIES

Currant
Unsecured:
Loans - other

toans - related parties

{1} Theloan - other is non-interest bearing, repayable at call and unsecured.

{H
(i)

(i} The related party loan was settied in full during the financial year.

19. SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Opening balance at 1 july 2008
Additional provisions

Amounts used

Balance at 30 June 2010

Analysis of provisions

Current
Non-current

Closing balances consist of the foliowing
employee benefits:

Annual Leave

Long Service Leave
Provision for Performance Bonus

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
Notes 2010 2008 2010 2009
$ $ $ $
60,000 - 60,000 -
- - - §25,274
60,000 - 60,000 625,274
CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
Employee Employee
benefits Total benefits Total
427,483 427,483 427,483 427,483
284,136 284,136 284,136 284,136
386,399 386,399 386,399 386,399
325,219 325,219 325,218 325,219
2010 2009 2010 2009
] $ $ 5
225,056 341,880 225,056 341,880
100,163 85,603 100,163 85,603
325,219 427,483 325,219 427,483
2010 2009 2010 2009
4 3 ] 5
141,549 124,268 141,549 124,268
100,163 85,603 100,163 85,603
83,507 217,612 83,507 217,612
325,219 427,483 325,219 427,483
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

20. ISSUED CAPITAL

2010 2008
Number of Number of
shares $ shares 5

{a) Movements in issued capital of Print Mail

Logistics Limited

Beginning of the financial year 15,100,000 4,187,679 2,692,500 3,456,655
Issued during the year 12,108,334 3,631,000 12,407,500 843,463
Transaction costs net of Income tax - {348,350 - (112,439)
End of the financial year 27,203,334 7,470,329 ]i5.100,000 4,187,679

The number of shares autharised for issue at the end of financial year is 27,203,334 {2009: 15,100,000).

Effective 1 July 1998, the Company Law Review Act 1998 abolished the concept of par value shares and the concept of
autharised capital. Accordingly, the parent entity does not have aythorised capital or par value in respectof its issued
shares.

2010 2008
{b) Movements in equity component of convertible Number of Number of
Notes Notes $ : Notes $
Beginning of the financial year 5 414,065 ) 414,065
tssued during the year - - - -
Equity component of convertible notes redeemed (2) ) (a) _
during the year
Converted during the year - - - -
End of the financial year 3 414,065 5 414,065

(¢} Terms and conditions of contributed equity

Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the event of winding up the company, to
participate In the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets in propertion o the number of and amounts paid up an
chares held. There are no externally imposed capital requirements.

{d} Terms and conditions of convertible notes
The Convertible Notes were issued on the following basis;
Issuer: Print Mail logistics Umited,
Note holder: 1SLHoldings Pty Lid {In Liquidation).
Security: Three separate fixed and floating charges.
Notes cutstanding: $750,000 facevalue (with the consequential right of conversion into 375,000 ordinary shares in
the parent entity). There are three separate Notes each with a facevalue of $250,000.
Maturity Dates: 31 December 2010
30 June 2011
31 December 2011
Interest: 1 % per annum, payable semi annually in arrears.
Conversion: The Note holder may, atits option, elect to convert all or part of 2 Note into ordinary shares of the parent
entity at a conversion rate of $2 per share, One of the parent entity's directors, Mr Elias, has been granted an option
by the Note holder to acquire any or all of the Notes at any time prior to their maturity,
The equity and liability components of the Notes have been calculated in accordance with AASB 132 - Financlal
Instruments: Presentation .

{e) Transaction costs

Transaction costs relate to various costs in issuing equity instruments including legal and professional advisory fees,
printing and distribution costs. Transaction costs are accounted for as a deduction from equity in accordance with
AASB 132 - Finaneial Instruments: Presentation .
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

21, STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENTENTITY
Notes 2010 2009 2010 2009
s s 5 5
{a) Recondliation of the net profit/(loss) after tax
to the net cash flows from operations
Net profit/(foss) 92,206 218,873 {171,365} 353,060
Non-cash items
Depreciation of non-currentassets 774,661 557,530 443,276 405,814
Dividend - (461,833) - -
Profit on forgivenass of loan {300,000} {659,762} - {903,643)
Net {profit)/loss on disposal of property, plantand
equipment (1,793) (101,300) {1,793} (187,315)
Loss on sale of sharas - 413,91% - -
Motional interest - Convertible Notes 87,290 120,471 87,290 120,471
Share of net loss of associates 8,345 - - -
Changes in assets and Habllities
Changes in trade and other receivables 22,855 {67,919) 24,089 79,458
Changes In other assets 38,274 (126,383} 37,065 8,616
Changes In inveniories (30,530) {25,766) {30,530} {25,766)
Changes in deferred tax (53,355} (136,953} {236,604) {95,731)
Changes in trade creditors {210,636} {453,118) 164,754 {834,560}
Changes in sundry creditors {110,145) 172,003 {108,564) 185,955
Changes in employee entitiements {102,264) 209,522 {102,263) 209,522
Net cash flow from/{used in) operating activities 214,908 {340,721} 103,855 {684,119)
{b} Cash balance comprises:
- Cash assets (67,388) 30,170 {67,666) 30,060
- Bank overdraft facility {45,984) {133,898} {45,984) 133,898)
Clasing cash balance g (113,372} {103,723} (113,650) (103,837}

(¢} Financing facilities available
At reporting date, the consolidated entity has financing facilities negottated and available with the followinglenders:

Facility used

$
Bank overdraft facil ity - $150,000 {i} {45,884)

{45,984}

(i} Finance providad by Austrafia and New Zealand Banking Group Limited {"ANZ"). ANZ holds a registered fixed and
floating charge over the parent entity.

{d) Non cash investing and finanding activities
Plant and equipment to the value of $375,724 was acquired by way of entering into a hire purchase agreement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010
22. CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS

{a) Capitai expenditure commitments
010

A B O N DN e

in May 2010, the parent entity contracted to purchase plant and equipment tetalling $152,680. The plant and
equipment is due to be instailed in August 2010 at which time the balance of 577,832 falls due.

2009

In June 2009, the parent entity contracted to purchase three separate items of plant and equipment from threeseparate
vendors totaling $848,100. The items of plant and equipment were installed in December 2008.

CONSOLIDATED ENTHY PARENTENTITY

Notes 2010 2009 2010 2009
(b} Lease expenditure commitments S s 4 5
{1} Operating leases {nan-cancellable)
Minimum |ease commitments
- not later than one year (i} 229,666 218,798 649,666 530,748
- later than one year and not later
than five years (i} 135,376 283,416 135,376 283,416
Aggregate lease expenditure
contracted for at reporting date 365,042 502,214 785,042 814,164

{i) Operating leases consists of {i} premises rental of $229,666 and {ii}) machine rental of $420,000. The parent entity
leases printing equipment from 999998939 Pty Ltd and 666666 Pty Ltd. The operating leases terminate on 30 June 2011,

(ii} Operating | eases consist of premises rental of $135,376.

In respect of the premises leases the table below provides a general description of the significant leasing arrangements

in place at balance date:

Contingent significant
Property Annual Rent  |Term Option Term Restrictions
|Rent Payable
) limposed
Property A 393,780 01/03/2009 - |01/07/2011 - |Market review [Nil
30/06/2011 310/06/2013 by an
independent
valuer at
01/07/2011
Property B $62,000 18/07/2008 - |19/07/2011- [{Fixed rentfor |[Nif
18/07/2011 |18/07/2012  {theterm of the
agreement
Property C 523,988 01/10/2009 - |01/10/2010- |Rentreview of |Nii
30/09/2010 {30/08/2011  |5% at
01/10/2010
Property D 567,289 02/06/2003 - |02/06/2008 - {Marketreview }Nil
01/06/2008 01/06/2013 referenced to
the consumer
price index
assessed
annually
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

annual report 2009-2010

22. CAPITAL AND LEASING COMMITMENTS {continued)

{b} Lease expenditure commitments {continued}

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
2010 2009 2010 2009
Hire purchase commitments S 5 4 $
Commitments are payable as follows:
Payments within 1 year 451,797 - - -
Payments 1-5 years 748,614 - - -
Less: Future finance charges (173,668) - - -
1,026,743 - - -
Present value of minimum payments:
Payments within 1 year 385,718 - - -
Payments 1-5 years 641,025 - - -
1,026,743 - - -
Recognised as a liability represented as follows:
Liability - current 385,718 - - -
Liability - non-current 641,025 - - -
1,026,743 - - -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

23. EMPLOYEE RENEFITS AND SUPERANNUATION COMMITMENTS

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PAREMNT ENTITY
2010 2009 2010 2009
5 $ $ $
The aggregate employee benefit
liabitity is comprised of:
Provisions {current} 225,056 341,880 225,056 341,880
Provisions (non-current) 100,163 85,603 100,163 85,603
325,2_}3 427,483 325,2159 427,483
CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
2010 2009 2010 2009
Key Management Personnel Commitments S 5 s S
Commitments are payable as follows:
Payments within 1 year 359,700 - 359,700 -
Payments 1-5 years 179,850 - 179,850 -
539,550 - 539,550 -
Name Commencement | Term Salary 2010 2011 2012
date
Nigel EHas 1 July 2009 2 years and | $150,000 per annum plus $163,500 $163,500 $81,750
& months 9% superannuation
Adrian 1 july 2009 2 years and | $90,000 per annum plus 9% $98,100 598,100 549,050
Pereira & months superannuation
Peter 1 luly 2009 2 years and | $90,000 per annum plus 9% $98,100 458,100 549,050
Maclead 6 months superannuation
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

24, AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Amounts received or due and recelvable by WHK
Horwath

- audit or review of the financial report

- income tax services
Amounts received or due and receivable by
Ruddicks

- audit of the financial report

- income tax services

25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

{a) Transactions with director related entities

Sales

Sales were made to the following subsidiarles and
associated entities:

88883888 Py Ltd

999999999 Py Ltd

666666 Pty Ltd

Armstrong Registry Services Limited

Purchases

Purchases were made from the foliowing
subsidiaries:

999999999 Pty Ltd

666666 Pty td

Notes

(i)
{i}

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
2010 2009 210 2009
$ s $ $
40,000 - 40,000 -
10,750 - 10,750 -
- 26,000 - 26,000
- 8,000 - 8,000
50,750 34,000 50,750 34,000
CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENT ENTITY
2030 2003 2010 2009
$ $ H] ]
- - 11,298
- - - 446,447
- - - 610,965
4121 - 4,121 -
4,121 - 4,121 1,068,710

{i)
i)

- - 146,800 i28,513
- - 375,142 147,238
- - 521,942 275,801

(i) 99999999 Pty Lid feased an item of plant and equipment to the parent entity during the financial year for use in the
parent entity's operations. The operating [ease expenditure during the financial year was $146,800. Thesetransactions

were entered into on normal commercial terms.

{ii) 666666 Pty Lid leased items of ptant and equipment to the parent entity during the flnancial year for use in the
parententity's operations. The operating leas e expenditure during the financial year was $375,142. Thesetransactions

were entered into on normal commercial terms.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
30 JUNE 2010

25. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES {continued)

CONSOLIDATED ENTITY PARENTENTITY
Notes 2010 2009 2010 2009
5 5 5 5
{b) Loans from/{to) directer related entities
At balance date, the parent entity had
borrowed/{loaned) the following amounts
from/f{to} director related entities:
999959999 Pty Ltd {i} - - (634,345) 164,406
666666 Pty Ltd {ii} - - (44,718} 460,868
Print Mail Logistics {International) Pty Ltd {iti) - - 1927) -
- - (57922@) 625,274

{11 The loan to 999599999 Pty Lid from the parent entity is non-interest bearing, unsecured and repayable atcall.
{1i) The loan to 666666 Pty Ltd fram the parent entity is non-interest bearing, unsecured and repayable ateall.

{iii} The loan to Print Mail Logistics {International) Pty ltd from the parent entity is non-interest bearing, unsecured and
repayableatcall.

2009 2009 2010 2010 2010 2010
{c} Equity instruments of directors % No. Additions No. Disposais No. Na. %

{i} The percentage and number of the ordinary share capital beneficially owned by the directors or their related entities is as

follows:

Nigel 8 Elias 7.1% 1,076,300 2,214,420 387,000 2,903,720 1W07%
Armstrong Regisiry Services Limited 0.0% - 2,720,000 - 2,720,000 10.0%
Robert C Cameron 2.3% 504,000 - - 504,000 1.9%
larok Pty Ltd 0.9% 134,000 235,000 - 369,000 1.4%
Niget B Elias and Benjamin N Elias 0.0% - 120,000 - 120,000 0.4%
<Elias Superannuyation Fund>

Rebecca EElias 0.5% 80,000 - - 80,000 0.3%
John W Woods 0.0% - 57,600 7,000 50,000 0.2%
William K bownie {i} 0.0% - 12,000 - 12,000 0.0%
Robert A Cameron 0.0% - 7,000 - 7,000 00%

{i} At balance date, Mr Downie was the registered but non-beneficial owner of 12,000 ordinary shares in the Company.

{d) Equity instruments of key management personnel

{i} The percentage and number of the ordinary share capital beneficially owned by the key management personnel or their
refoted entities {who are not directors of the company) is as follows:

2009 2009 2010 2010 2010 010
% No. Additions No. Bisposals No. No. %
Adrian | Pergira 0.0% - 14,000 - 14,000 0.1%

Peter A Macleod 0.0% - 10,000 - 10,000 0.0%

L W ]

age 60




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued;)

30 JUNE 2010

26. CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Name of Controlled Entity

Controlled by Print Mail Logistics Limited

999999999 Pty Lid 100%
666666 Pty Ltd 100%
88888888 Pty Ltd 0%

Controlled by 939999999 Pty Lid
Print Mail togistics {International} Pty itd 100%

Acquisition of Controtled Entities

On 19 February 2010, Print Mail Llogistics {International) Pty Lid was registered as a company under the
Corporations Act 2001 . Upon registration, 999389999 Pty [td held 100% of the paid up capital of Print Mail
logistics {International} Pty Ltd being 525,000 and the netassets of Print Mail Logistics {International) Pty ltd were

$25,000.

Disposal of Controlled Entities

On 23 June 2009, the parent entity sold 100% of Hs interest in 8888B888 Pty Ltd. No remaining interest In the entity

2010 % 2009 %
Owned Owned

100%
100%
100%

0%

Place of Incorporation

Incorporated and domiciled in Australia
Incorporated and domiciled in Australia
Incorporated and domiclled in Australia

Incorporated and domiciled in Australia

was held by any member of the consolidated entity in the financial year ended 30 June 2010.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010

27. SEGMENT INFORMATION

Identification of reportable segments

The consolidated entity has identified its operating segments based on the internal reports that are reviewed and used by
the Board of directors (chief operating decision makers) in assessing the performance and determining the allocation of
resources.

The consolidated entity Is managed primarily on the basis of product category and service offerings since the diversification
of the consolidated entity's operations inherently have notably different risk profiles and parformance assessment criteria.

Operating segments are therefore determined on the same basis.

Reportable segments disclosed are based on aggregating operating segments where the segments are considered to have
similar economic characteristics and are also similar with respect to the following:
- the products soid andfor services provided by the segment;

- the manufacturing process;

- the type or class of customer for the products or service;
- the distribution method; and

- external regulatory requirements.

Types of products and services by segment

(i} Printing

The printing segment prepares, prints, finishes and delivers printed material for public and private entities. All products and
services are aggregated as one reportable segment as the products and services are simitar in nature, they are manufactured

and distributed to similar types of customers and they are subject to a similar regulatory environment.

Slanificant plant and equipment, including computer software, printing and finishing equipment, form the basis of the
operating assets in this segment.

The mailing and distribution segment receives products from this segment. Transfer pricing is not applicable between
segments given that clients are invoiced on a mutually exclusive basis for goods and services supplied by each segment.

(i} Maifing and distribution

The mailing and distribution segment inserts printed material inte envelopes and distributes envelopas and printed material
both domestically and internationally. Distribution is primarily achieved through the engagement of third party sugpliers.

Significant plant and equipment, primarily maif insertion machines, form the basis of the operating assets in this segment.

The mailing and distribution segment receives products from the printing segment. Transfer pricing is not applicable between
segments given that clients are invoiced on a mutually exclusive basis for goods and services supplied by each segment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
30 JUNE 2010

27. SEGMENT INFORMATION {continued)

Basis of accounting for purposes of reparting by operating segnients
Accounting policles adopted

Unless stated otherwise, all amounts reported to the Board of directors as the chief decision makers with respect to
operating segments are determined in accordance with accounting policies that are consistent to those adopted in the
annual financial statements of the consolidated entity as detailad in Note 1.

Inter-segment tronsactions

Transfer pricing is not applicable between segments given that clients are invoiced on a mutually exclusive basis for goods
and services supplied by each segment.

Overhead expenditure is allocated to reporting segments based on the segments’ overall propertion of revenue genaration
within the consolidated entity. The Board of directors believe this is representative of likely consumption of head office
expenditure that should be used in assessing segment performance and cost recoveries,

There are no inter-segment loans recelvable or payable.

Segment assets

Where any asset is used across multiple segments, the asset is allocated to the segment that receives the majority of
economic value from the asset. In the majority of instances, segment assats are clearly identifiable on the basis of their

nature and physical location.

Unless indicated otherwise in the segment assets note, investments in financial assets, deferred tax assets and intangible
assets have not been aflocated to operating segments.

Comparative information

This is the first reporting period in which AASB 8: Operating Segments has been adopted. Comparative information has been
re-stated to conform to the requirements of the revised Standard.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

30 JUNE 2010
28. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There are no subsequent events to report.

29. CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

There are no contingent assets or liabilities to report.

30. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The consolidated entity is not economically dependent on any entity or group of entities.

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial risk management policies
The consolidated entity’s financial Instruments consistmainly of deposits with banks, trade receivables, investment in
a private company, trade payables, loans to and from related and other parties and a bank overdraft facility.

The consolidated entity does not have any derivative instruments at 30 June 2010.

(i) Treasury risk managemant
The Board of directors meet on a regular basis to analyse financial risk exposure and to evaluate treasury management
strategies in the context of the most recent econamic canditlons and forecasts.

The consolidated entity’s overall risk mangament strategy seeks to assist the consolidated entity in meeting its
financial targets, whilst minimising potential effects an financial performance.

(i} Capital management
The Board's policy is to use any surplus cash to (i) meet the consolidated entity’s operating financial requirements and
{ii) meet its existing debt obligations.

There were no changes in the consolidated entity's approach to capital management during the year in so far as the
Initial Public Offering ("IPO") is concerned. The proceeds from the PO were utilised to meet existing debt obligations
and complete the settiment of amounts due arising from investment in plantand equipment

{ifi) Financial risk exposures and management
The main risks the consolidated entity is exposed to through its financial instruments are interest rate risk, creditrisk
and liquidity risk.

(a} Interest rate risk

The cansolidated entity’s exposure to interest rate risks and the effective interestrates of financial assets and financiai
liabilities, both recognised and unrecognised atthe reporting date, are as follows:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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30 JUNE 2010 £
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31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

{b) Net fair values
All financial assets and liabilities have been recognised atthe balance date at their net fair value.

The aggregate net fair values and carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the
Statement of Financial Position and in the Notes to the financial statements,

(1) The following methods and assumptions are used to determine the net fair values of financial assets and liobifities,
Cash and cash equivalents: The carrying amount approximates fair value because of the short-term to maturity.
Trade receivables, trade creditors . The carrying value approximates fair value.

long term loans and borrowings: The carrying value approximates fair value.

Convertible Notes: Convertible Notes are measured at net present value utitising an interest rate of 5.85% per annum.

Based on the above valuation methodologies, management considers that fair values are materially in line with
carrying values.
(¢} Credit risk exposures

The consolidated entity’s maximum exposures 1o credit risk at reporting date in relation to each class of recognised
financial assets, is the carryingamount of those assets as indicated in the Statement of Financial Position.

The consolidated entity minimises concentrations of credit risk in relation to trade recelvables by undertaking
transactions with a farge number of customers.

Concentrations of credit risk on trade receivables arise as follows:

Maximum credit risk
exposure* for each
concentration

Percentage of total trade

7,
debtors $'000
2010 2009 2010 2009
Government/Semi-Government 54 44 280 192
Other non-concentrated 46 56 236 247
100 100 515 439

* The maxirmum credit risk expasure does not take into account the value of any collateral or other security held, in the
event ather entities/parties fail to perform their obligations under the financtal instruments in guestion.

Creditrisk in trade receivables is managed as follows:
- payment terms are 21 days;
- credit applications are completed for all new customers; and
- large balances are monitored on a daily basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
30 JUNE 2010

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

(d) Liguidity risk
The consolidated entity manages liquidity risk by monitoring forecast cash flows and ensuring that adequate
unutilised borrowing facitities are maintained.

At 30 June 2010, the parent entity was in breach of a financial covenenat being an interest cover ratio, in relation to the
bank overdraft of 545,984 disclosed in Note 17. Terms of the facility are currently being negotiated, but at this stage
payment terms have notbeen accelerated.

Contractual maturity: Liability Contracted | Due<1vyear Due 1-5years Due>5years
Cashflow
Consolidated entity
Payables 781,375 781,37% 781,375
Hire purchase agreements 1,026,743 1,200,410 451,797 748,613
Convertible Notes 688,697 757,500 506,250 251,250
Bank overdraft facility 45,984 45,984 45,984
Loans - other 200,000 209,000 209,000
Non-interest bearingloans 60,000 60,000 60,000
Parent Entity
Trade and other payables 789,380 789,380 789,380
Convertible Notes 688,697 757,500 506,250 251,250
Bank overdraft facility 45,984 45,984 45,984
Non-interest bearingloans 60,000 60,0600 60,000

{e) Interest rate sensitivity analysis
The consolidated entity has performed a sensitivity analysis relating to its exposure to interest rate risk at balance
date and does not censider that a change In variable interest rates wili have a materiai affect on the consolidated
entity's current year results or equity.
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2.
DIRECTORS' DECLARATION £
[T
=
In accordance with a resolution of the directors of Print Mail Logistics Limited, 1 state that, in the opinion of the directars: £
[0

{a) the financial statements and the notes of the company are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001,

including:
{i) giving a true and fair view of the company’s and consclidated entity’s financial position as at 30 june

2010 and of its performance for the year ended on that date;

(i camplying with Accounting Standards and Corporations Regulations 2001;
{tii} complying with International Financizal Reparting Stantlards as disclosed in Note 1(a); and

{b) there are reasonable grounds to believe that the company will be ahle to pay its debts as and when they become
due and payable; and

{¢) the Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer have each provided the declarations required by section 2954
of the Corporations Act 2001,

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of directors.

John W Wonds
Chairman

4™ August 2010
Date
Hobart, Tasmania

pez= 73




PO an I RS D ot fo ke el e e A ER B M mw me e mm o e e

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

.z.mnmamath

{NDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Print Mail Logistics Limited
Aoport on the Financlal Report

‘We have zudited the accompanying firancial report of Print Mail Logistics Limited {the Company), which
comprises the Statements of Financial Position as at 30 June 2010, and the Statements of Comprehensive
income, statements of Changes in Equity and Statements of Cash Flows for the year ended on that date, a
surnmary of significant accounting policies, other explanatory notes and the directors’ declaration of the
consolidated entity comprising the Company and the entiies it controlled at the year's end or from time
to time during the financial year.

_" Directors' Responsiblitty for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
report in accordance with Australizn Accounting Standards {including the Ausiralisn Accounting
Interpretations) and the Corporations Act 2001. This responsibility includes establishing and maintaining
intemal controls relevant to the preparation and fair presenlation of the financial report that is free fom
material misstatement, whether due to frand or error; selecting and applying appropriate acoounting
palicies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances. In Note 1, the
directors also state, in accordance with Accounting Standard AASB 10 Presentation of Financial
Statements, that compliance with the Australian equivalents to International Financial Reporting
Standards ensures that the financial report, comprising the l'l.nancml statements and notes, complies with
Tnternational Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor's Responsibllity

Our resporsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our andik We conducted our
audit inaccordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we
comply with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assarance whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain andit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial report The procedures selected depend on the anditor's judgement, including the
assessment: of the risks of materia] misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intermal control relevant to the entity's preparation
arxt fair presentation of the financial report in oxder ko design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the clreumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
internat control. An audit also inelndes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonabieness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as eveluating the overail
presentation of the financial report.

Member Crowe Honwath International

‘WHEK IHorwathe Brisbane

Level 16, WHK Horwath Centre 120 Edward Street
Brisbare Gueansland 4009 Australia

A Crowe mwath. GPO Box 736 Brisbane Queenstand 4041 Australia
Telephone +61 7 3233 3553 Facsimile +61 7 3210 6183

T P— qﬁmu’m " ol Asasiating o Socs vl Emai infobriggwhkhorwath.com su www.whithorwath.coman
Hizds e f Sy AWHX Group finn
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suflicient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our auditopinion,

{ndependence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence sequitements of the Corporations Act
2001,

Auditer's Opinlon

In cur opinion the finaneial report of Print Mail Logistics Limited is in accordance with the Corporations
Act 2001, including:

(a} giving a true and fair view of the company's and consolidated entity's financial position &5 at 30 June
2010 and of their performance for the year ended on that date; and

{b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards {incinding the Auatralian Accounting 3
Interpretations) and the Cosporations Regulations 2001. ]

The financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note
L

3 Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report included on pages & - 12 of the directors’ report for the year
ended 30 June 2010. The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation end presentation of 3
the Remunieration Report in accordance with section 3004 of the Corperations Act 2001. Our
responsibiliy is to express an opinion on the Remuneration Repork, based on our audit conducted in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Auditor's Opinion f

In oy opinion the Remunemtion Repurt of Print Mail Logiatics Limited for the year ended 30 June 2810,
compties with section 3004 of the Corporations Act 2001.

AN T - LTS S

WHK HORWATH

e _

VANESSA OE WAAL
Princlpal

Brisbane, 2 Angusk 2010.

Linbility limited by a scheme approved undar Professional Standards Legislation ather than for the acts or
issions of fi inl services fi

fo o roasiarazer, tezecescana Ferrnan B A0 L 1L L v YT T LT L E2 P E A E R E I 1 T PT T BT EEE L0 L PP I LI ERE L 008 Y NLd PRI T 0L EE T I A3 0 RN YRS RN PR IR ORO B E Al 142537 1 S aalat i rmn inen

75

page 75




SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

A. Substantial Shareholders
Name

Landav Pty Ltd .

Mr J Capo-Bianco & Mrs S Capo-Bianco & NSS Trustees Lid <The Capo
Bianco Retirement Trust>

Nigel B Elias

Armstrong Registry Services Limited

Pumbaa Investment Pty Ltd

Dermos Pty Ltd

B. Distribution of Fully Paid Ordinary Shares

(i) Distribution schedule of holdings
1-10,600
10,001 ~ 50,000
50,001 -100,000
100,001 and over
Total number of holders

{ii} Percentage held by the 20 largest Sharcholders

C. Twenty Largest Sharaholders as at 30 June 2010

Name

Landav Pty Ltd

Mr J} Capo-Blanco & Mrs S Capo-Bianco & NSS Trusteas ktd<The Capo
Bianco Retirement Frust>

Nigel B Elias

Armstrong Registry Services Limied
Pumbaa Investment Pty 1td

Dermos Pty Ltd

Jane George

Robert C Cameron

Wellington Capital Limited

Estival Holdings Pty Ltd

Hobart Properties and Securities Pty Ltd
Lewis Securities Ltd ({n Liquidation)
Mare Hoegger

Jarok Pty Lid

inveham Pty Ltd

Maree Eliis

Esther Jackson

Lance Bear Pty lid

Crossborder Investments Pty Ltd

Nigel B Elias and Benjamin N Elias <Elias Superannuation Fund>

Tap 24 Holders of Issued Capital as at 30 June 2010

D. Vating Rights —~Ordinary Shares

Number of Percentage of
Shares issued shares
65,785,000 24.94%
5,437,280 19.99%
2,503,720 10.67%
2,720,000 10.00%
1,500,000 5.51%
1,433,000 5.27%
75
23
7
21
126
93.74%
Number of Percentage of
Shares issued shares
6,785,000 24.94%
5,437,280 19.99%
2,903,720 10.67%
2,720,000 10.00%
1,500,000 5.51%
1,433,000 5.27%
554,000 2.04%
504,000 1.85%
500,000 1.84%
400,000 1.47%
400,000 1.47%
375,998 1.40%
375,000 1.38%
369,000 1.36%
330,000 1.21%
249,000 0.92%
200,000 0.74%
200,000 0.74%
140,334 0.52%
120,000 0.44%
25,500,332 93.74%

On a show of hands, every member, present in person or by proxy, shall have one vote and upan a poll every member,

present in person or by proxy, shall have one vote for each share.
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